
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

Regular Meeting of the 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
NOVEMBER 29, 2004 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 



TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration is on 
course with these goals. 
 
Goals 
 
1. Minimize cost and increase efficiency of City government. 
2. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment. 
3. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally. 
4. Creatively maintain and improve public infrastructure. 
5. Protect life and property. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 



 
      

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  AGENDA 

November 29, 2004 – 7:30 PM 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 1 

ROLL CALL: 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations:  International Day of Persons with Disabilities – December 3, 2004 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 Proposed Consent Judgment City of Troy v. Premium Development 1 

C-2 Commercial Vehicle Appeal -1855 Boulan 2 

C-3 Commercial Vehicle Appeal - 2887 E. Wattles Road 3 

C-4 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 3035 Heritage 5 

C-5 Parking Variance Request – 1717 Stutz Drive 6 

C-6 Request for Rezoning (Z-697) West Side of Crooks Road, North of Big Beaver 
Road – Section 20 – P-1 to O-1 and B-3 8 



POSTPONED ITEMS: 8 

D-1 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 200) for Article 34.70.00 – One Family 
Cluster Option 8 

CONSENT AGENDA: 9 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 9 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 9 

E-2  Minutes:  Regular Meeting of November 15, 2004 9 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: 9 

a) International Day of Persons with Disabilities – December 3, 2004.................... 10 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 10 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 10 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: No appointments to Boards and 
Committees scheduled. 10 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 10 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 10 

a) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 215A) – Article 04.20.00 and 
Articles 40.55.00-40.59.00, Pertaining to Accessory Buildings Definitions and 
Provisions – Scheduled for December 6, 2004................................................... 10 

G-2 Green Memorandums: No Green Items Submitted 10 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 10 

H-1  Resolution Affirming the Principles of Federalism and Civil Liberties – Advanced by 
Council Member Eisenbacher 10 



COUNCIL COMMENTS: 11 

I-1  No Council Comments Brought Forward 11 

REPORTS: 11 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: No Minutes Submitted 11 

J-2 Department Reports: 11 

a) October 31, 2004 Monthly Financial Report ....................................................... 11 
b) State-Facilitated Emerald Ash Borer Tree Removal Contract, and Status 

Report on Troy’s Ash Borer Control Program..................................................... 11 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: No Letters of Appreciation Submitted 11 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: 11 

a) Resolution Adopted by Royal Oak City Commission, November 8, 2004 
Regarding:  House Bill 4358............................................................................... 11 

J-5  Calendar 11 

STUDY ITEMS: 11 

K-1  Alternative Sites for Minor League Baseball Facility – Carryover From 6:00 P.M. 
Special Meeting if Needed 11 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 11 

CLOSED SESSION: 11 

L-1 Closed Session - No Closed Session Requested                                                     11 



RECESSED 12 

RECONVENED 12 

ADJOURNMENT 12 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 12 

Monday, December 06, 2004 Regular City Council .............................................. 12 
Monday, December 20, 2004 Regular City Council .............................................. 12 
Monday, January 10, 2005 Regular City Council .................................................. 12 
Monday, January 24, 2005 Regular City Council .................................................. 12 
Monday, February 7, 2005 Regular City Council................................................... 12 
Monday, February 21, 2005 Regular City Council................................................. 12 
Monday, February 28, 2005 Regular City Council................................................. 12 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 29, 2004 
 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  

Pastor Dan Lewis from Troy Christian Chapel 

ROLL CALL: 

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  International Day of Persons with Disabilities – December 3, 2004 
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Proposed Consent Judgment City of Troy v. Premium Development  
 
City Management requests a 5-minute presentation regarding this item. 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-11- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
RESOLVED, That the proposed Consent Judgment in the matter of City of Troy v. Premium 
Construction, L.L.C., et. al. (Case No. 01-035191-CC) is hereby APPROVED and the Assistant 
City Attorney is hereby AUTHORIZED to sign the Consent Judgment on behalf of the City. 
 
FURTHER RESOLVED, The City Council hereby APPROVES the conceptual site plan for the 
property previously owned by Premium Construction, L.L.C. and described in Exhibit A of the 
Consent Judgment.  Furthermore, the approved conceptual site plan shall be ATTACHED to 
the Consent Judgment as Exhibit B. 
 
Yes:  
No:  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 29, 2004 
 

- 2 - 

C-2 Commercial Vehicle Appeal -1855 Boulan 
 
City Management requests a 5-minute presentation regarding this item. 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-11- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
RESOLUTION A FOR APPROVAL 
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has found that the petitioner has demonstrated 
the presence of the following condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance:   
              
         
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Sergiu Botezan, for waiver of 
Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor parking of a 
Chevrolet cube van in a residential district is hereby APPROVED for      
(not to exceed two years). 
 
Or  
 
RESOLUTION B FOR DENIAL 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 29, 2004 
 

- 3 - 

 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has not found that the petitioner has 
demonstrated the presence of condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Sergiu Botezan, for waiver of 
Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor parking of a 
Chevrolet cube van in a residential district is hereby DENIED. 
 
Yes:  
No:  
 
C-3 Commercial Vehicle Appeal - 2887 E. Wattles Road 
 
City Management requests a 5-minute presentation regarding this item. 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-11- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
RESOLUTION A FOR APPROVAL 
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 29, 2004 
 

- 4 - 

 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)." and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has found that the petitioner has demonstrated 
the presence of the following condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance:   
              
         
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Costel Luca, for waiver of 
Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor parking of a 
Ford cube van in a residential district is hereby APPROVED for      (not to 
exceed two years). 
 
Or  
 
RESOLUTION B FOR DENIAL 
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has not found that the petitioner has 
demonstrated the presence of condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 29, 2004 
 

- 5 - 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Costel Luca, for waiver of 
Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor parking of a 
Ford cube van in a residential district is hereby DENIED. 
 
Yes:  
No:  
 
C-4 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 3035 Heritage 
 
City Management requests a 5-minute presentation regarding this item. 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-11- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
RESOLUTION A - FOR APPROVAL 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has found that the petitioner has demonstrated 
the presence of the following condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance:   
               
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Tai Hsiang Chiang, for waiver 
of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor parking of a 
GMC Cube van in a residential district is hereby APPROVED for      (not to 
exceed two years). 
 
Or  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 29, 2004 
 

- 6 - 

RESOLUTION B - FOR DENIAL 
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)." and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has not found that the petitioner has 
demonstrated the presence of condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Tai Hsiang Chiang, for waiver 
of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor parking of a 
GMC Cube van in a residential district is hereby DENIED. 
 
Yes:  
No:  
 
C-5 Parking Variance Request – 1717 Stutz Drive 
 
City Management requests a 5-minute presentation regarding this item. 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-11- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
Proposed Resolution A - For Approval 
 
WHEREAS, Articles XLIII and XLIV (43.00.00 and 44.00.00) of the Zoning Ordinance provide 
that the City Council may grant variances from the off-street parking requirements of the Zoning 
Ordinance upon general findings that: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 29, 2004 
 

- 7 - 

1. The variance would not be contrary to public interest or general purpose and intent of the 
Zoning Ordinance. 

 
2. The variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use as a principal use 

within a zoning district. 
 
3. The variance does not cause an adverse effect to properties in the immediate vicinity or 

zoning district. 
 
4. The variance relates only to property described in the application for variance; and 
 
WHEREAS, Article XLIII (43.00.00) requires that in granting, the City Council shall find that the 
practical difficulties justifying the variances are: 
 
A. That absent a variance, no reasonable use can be made of the property; or 
 
B. That absent a variance, a significant natural feature would be negatively affected or 

destroyed; or 
 
C. That absent a variance, public health, safety and welfare would be negatively affected; or 
 
D. That literal enforcement of the Zoning Ordinance precludes full enjoyment of the 

permitted use and makes conforming unnecessarily burdensome. In this regard, the City 
Council shall find that a lesser variance does not give substantial relief, and that the relief 
requested can be granted within the spirit of the Ordinance, and within the interests of 
public safety and welfare; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council finds the above-stated general conditions to be present and finds 
the practical difficulty stated above to be operative in the appeal; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Joseph Damico of Damico 
Contracting, Inc, for waiver of 4 additional parking spaces at the development at 1715-1717 
Stutz be APPROVED. 
 
Or  
 
Proposed Resolution B - For Denial 
 
WHEREAS, Articles XLIII and XLIV (43.00.00 and 44.00.00) of the Zoning Ordinance provide 
that the City Council may grant variances from the off-street parking requirements of the Zoning 
Ordinance upon general findings that: 
 
1. The variance would not be contrary to public interest or general purpose and intent of the 

Zoning Ordinance. 
 
2. The variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use as a principal use 

within a zoning district. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 29, 2004 
 

- 8 - 

3. The variance does not cause an adverse effect to properties in the immediate vicinity or 
zoning district. 

 
4. The variance relates only to property described in the application for variance; and 
 
WHEREAS, Article XLIII (43.00.00) requires that in granting, the City Council shall find that 
there are practical difficulties justifying the variances; and  
 
WHEREAS, City Council has not found that the requirements of Articles XLIII and XLIV 
(43.00.00 and 44.00.00) of the Zoning Ordinance have been met; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from That the request from Joseph 
Damico of Damico Contracting, Inc, for waiver of 4 additional parking spaces at the 
development at 1715-1717 Stutz be DENIED. 
 
Yes:  
No:  
 
C-6 Request for Rezoning (Z-697) West Side of Crooks Road, North of Big Beaver 

Road – Section 20 – P-1 to O-1 and B-3 
 
City Management requests a 5-minute presentation regarding this item. 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-11- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
RESOLVED, that the P-1 to O-1 and B-3 rezoning request, located on the west side of Crooks 
Road, north of Big Beaver Road, section 20, being 3.11 acres in size, is hereby GRANTED, as 
recommended by City Management and the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes:  
No:  
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:  

D-1 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 200) for Article 34.70.00 – One Family 
Cluster Option 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-11- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
RESOLVED, that Article XII (R-1T One Family Attached Residential District) and Article XXXIV 
(Residential Development Options), Article IV (Definitions) and Article X (One Family 
Residential Districts) of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance, be AMENDED to read as written in 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 29, 2004 
 

- 9 - 

the PROPOSED ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 200), dated 09/03/04, as 
recommended by the Planning Commission and City Management. 
 
Yes:  
No:  
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  
 
Public comment is limited to not more than twice nor longer than five (5) minutes on any 
item, unless so permitted by the Chair, in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the 
City Council, Article 15, as amended May 3, 2004. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-11- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which shall be considered after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes:  
No:  
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
 
E-2  Minutes:  Regular Meeting of November 15, 2004 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-11- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular Meeting of November 15, 2004 be 
APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  
  
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-11- 
 
RESOLVED, That the following City of Troy Proclamations be APPROVED: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 29, 2004 
 

- 10 - 

a) International Day of Persons with Disabilities – December 3, 2004 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment is limited to not more than twice nor longer than five (5) minutes on any 
item, unless so permitted by the Chair, in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the 
City Council, Article 15, as amended May 3, 2004. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair during the Public Comment section under item 12.“F” of the agenda. Other 
than asking questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall 
not interrupt or debate with members of the public during their comments. For those 
addressing City Council, petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time 
that may be extended with the majority consent of Council and all other interested 
people, their time may be limited to not more than twice nor longer than five (5) minutes 
on any item, unless so permitted by the Chair, in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 15, as amended May 3, 2004. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. 
 
F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: No appointments to Boards and 

Committees scheduled. 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  
a) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 215A) – Article 04.20.00 and Articles 

40.55.00-40.59.00, Pertaining to Accessory Buildings Definitions and Provisions – 
Scheduled for December 6, 2004 

 
G-2 Green Memorandums: No Green Items Submitted 
 
COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1  Resolution Affirming the Principles of Federalism and Civil Liberties – Advanced 
by Council Member Eisenbacher 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 29, 2004 
 

- 11 - 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments Brought Forward 
 
REPORTS:  
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: No Minutes Submitted 
 
J-2 Department Reports:  
a) October 31, 2004 Monthly Financial Report   
b) State-Facilitated Emerald Ash Borer Tree Removal Contract, and Status Report on 

Troy’s Ash Borer Control Program 
 
J-3  Letters of Appreciation: No Letters of Appreciation Submitted 
 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:   

a) Resolution Adopted by Royal Oak City Commission, November 8, 2004 Regarding:  
House Bill 4358 

 
J-5  Calendar 
 
STUDY ITEMS: 
K-1  Alternative Sites for Minor League Baseball Facility – Carryover From 6:00 P.M. 

Special Meeting if Needed 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Public comment is limited to not more than twice nor longer than five (5) minutes on any 
item, unless so permitted by the Chair, in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the 
City Council, Article 15, as amended May 3, 2004. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session - No Closed Session Requested
 
 
 
 
 

bartholotl
Text Box



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 29, 2004 
 

- 12 - 

 
 
RECESSED 
 
RECONVENED 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
 
 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, December 06, 2004 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 20, 2004 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, January 10, 2005 ........................................................ Regular City Council 
Monday, January 24, 2005 ........................................................ Regular City Council 
Monday, February 7, 2005 ........................................................ Regular City Council 
Monday, February 21, 2005.......................................................Regular City Council 
Monday, February 28, 2005.......................................................Regular City Council 

 

bartholotl
Placed Image



INTERNATIONAL DAY OF PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES 
DECEMBER 3, 2004 

 
WHEREAS, The International Day of Persons with Disabilities celebrates and acknowledges the 
experience and capabilities of persons with disabilities; and 
 
WHEREAS, First proclaimed in 1992 by the United Nations, the International Day of Persons with 
Disabilities annual observance aims to increase understanding and awareness of disability issues and 
trends; and 
 
WHEREAS, More than half a billion persons are disabled as a result of mental, physical or sensory 
impairment, and their lives are often limited by physical or social barriers; and 
 
WHEREAS, The day encourages the mobilization of support for practical action at all levels, by, with and 
for persons with disabilities; in the past two decades much has been accomplished in recognition of 
persons with disabilities; and  
 
WHEREAS, The theme for this year’s International Day of Persons with Disabilities is “Independent 
Living and Sustainable Livelihoods;” and  
 
WHEREAS, International Day of Persons with Disabilities hopes to increase awareness by from 
integrating disabled persons into all aspects of political, social, economic & cultural life; and  
 
WHEREAS, Troy’s Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities is an active proponent to ensure 
access to public services and facilities for citizens of all abilities. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy does hereby proclaim 
December 3, 2004 as International Day of Persons with Disabilities in the City of Troy, and 
encourages all citizens to respect and appreciate one another’s needs and abilities; 
 
Signed this 29th day of November 2004. 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 

 
 
____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Robin E. Beltramini, Mayor Pro Tem Cristina Broomfield, Councilwoman 
 
 
____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
David Eisenbacher, Councilman        Martin F. Howrylak, Councilman 
 
 
____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
David A. Lambert, Councilman       Jeanne M. Stine, Councilwoman 

bittnera
Text Box
A-01/E-03a



TO: Mayor and Members of Troy City Council  
FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager 

Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager- Services 
Doug Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
Mark Miller, Planning Director 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  

DATE: November 16, 2004 

  
  

SUBJECT: Proposed Consent Judgment- Troy v. Premium Construction   
 

 
The City initiated a condemnation action to acquire a 15.28 acre parcel of 

property located in Section 36, on the south side of Maple Road, between John R. Road 
and Dequindre Road.  Premium Construction L.L.C. was the owner of this property, with 
partners John Pavone and Mukesh Mangela.  This property was acquired in order to 
provide a limited neighborhood park in this section of the City of Troy.   

 
As with all condemnation cases, the City budgets for the acquisition by relying 

upon an independent appraisal of the property.  In this case, the City’s appraisal valued 
the property at $1,783,000, which has already been paid for the property.  In contrast, the 
appraisal hired by Premium Construction values the property at $4,500,000.    

 
The large difference between the two appraisals is due to a disagreement as to 

the amount of regulated wetlands on the property.  Premium argues that development is 
possible on the entire parcel, and in support of this argument, they point to the property to 
the east, the American House development, where the MDEQ allowed a substantial 
development on the property, in spite of the existence of wetlands.    

 
As the fiduciary for all of the City’s taxpayers, the City has an obligation to look at 

the impact of a worse case scenario, where Premium Construction would prevail entirely 
in the unpredictable jury process.  Under this scenario, the City could be ordered to pay 
an additional $2,700,000 in compensation, plus statutorily mandated attorney fees, costs, 
and interests, which is a total exposure of up to $6,500,000.  This amount greatly 
exceeds the amount budgeted for this acquisition, and therefore provided the City with an 
incentive to willingly engage in the Court ordered facilitation.  Through this process, the 
facilitator has proposed a settlement of the condemnation case that would allow the City 
to retain a neighborhood park, while simultaneously minimizing the risk of a substantial 
verdict against the City.  The proposed consent judgment represents this facilitation 
proposal, and City Administration recommends approval of it, due to the safeguards that 
are provided.   

 
In essence, the proposal allows the City to develop approximately eight acres of 

the southern half of the property as a passive park.  The property north of the Spencer 
Drain would be returned to Premium Construction for development in accordance with 
the approved site plan, which is incorporated into the proposed consent judgment.  The 
returned property would be developed under the R-1T zoning classification (single family 
attached residential), which is in compliance with the City’s Future Land Use Plan, and 
therefore would likely have been approved for re-zoning under future re-zoning requests.  
The development is limited to a maximum of 45 residential units.  In addition, the 
settlement would cap the City’s liability at $866,000 for statutory attorney fees.            

  
City Administration recommends approval of the proposed consent judgment and 

also approval of the proposed preliminary site plan, and requests authority to execute the 
judgment on behalf of the City.  As always, if you have any questions concerning the 
above, please let us know.      

bittnera
Text Box
C-01



 
 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 
 

OAKLAND COUNTY CIRCUIT COURT 
 

CITY OF TROY, a Michigan 
Municipal corporation, 
 
   Plaintiff, 
 
 v       Case No. 01-035191-CC  
 
                                                                                       Hon. Mark  A. Goldsmith 
 
PREMIUM CONSTRUCTION, L.L.C., a 
Michigan Limited Liability Company, 
 
   Defendant. 
________________________________/ 
 
CITY OF TROY-CITY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE 
By:  Susan M. Lancaster (P33168) 
Attorney for Plaintiff 
500 W. Big Beaver Road 
Troy, MI 48084 
(248) 524-3320 
 
David W. Berry (P25418) 
Ronald E. Reynolds (P40524) 
Attorney for Defendant Premium Construction, L.L.C 
32255 Northwestern Highway #280 
Farmington Hills MI 48334-1527 
(248) 851-3434 
__________________________________/ 

 
PROPOSED CONSENT JUDGMENT 

 
At a session of Court held in the 

Courthouse in the City of Pontiac, 
Oakland County, MI 

on:________________________ 
 

PRESENT:  HONORABLE MARK A. GOLDSMITH CIRCUIT JUDGE 
 



 2

 In this cause, the parties have stipulated to entry of this Consent 

Judgment, now therefore, 

 IT IS ORDERED: 

1. Plaintiff shall deed back to Defendant a portion of the property which was 

included in the Declaration of Taking and filed with the Oakland County 

Register of Deeds on June 26, 2002, free and clear of any claims, liens or 

encumbrances arising under Plaintiff’s ownership of the property. The 

property that will be deeded to the Defendant is legally described on 

Exhibit A, which is attached hereto. The deed returning the property shall 

be filed with and recorded by the Oakland County Register of Deeds. 

2. The property described on Exhibit A is hereby rezoned from R-1E to R-1T 

and may be developed and occupied for purposes set forth in the 

provisions of the Troy Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 39, Section 12.00.00 

(R-1T, One Family Attached Residential District), which are in effect on 

the date of the entry of this Consent Judgment.   

3. The property described on Exhibit A shall be developed in substantial 

compliance with the conceptual site plan, attached hereto as Exhibit B and 

approved by City Council on__________, whether developed by 

Defendant or Defendant’s heirs, successors or assigns.  Prior to any 

development on the Property, as described in Exhibit A, Defendant, or 

Defendant’s heirs, successors or assigns shall submit a complete 

Preliminary Site Plan Application to the Troy Planning Department, which 

shall include all documentation that is required by Troy ordinances and 



 3

development standards in effect at the time the Consent Judgment is 

entered.  The Planning Director shall then review the application and 

documentation to determine compliance with the approved concept site 

plan (attached as Exhibit B), and also compliance with the Troy 

ordinances in effect on the date of entry of this Consent Judgment, and 

shall make a recommendation concerning the Preliminary Site Plan 

Application to the Troy City Council.  If the Planning Director determines 

that the Preliminary Site Plan is consistent with the approved concept plan 

(attached as Exhibit B), and also the City of Troy ordinances and 

development standards that are in effect on the date of entry of this 

Consent Judgment, then City Council shall approve the Preliminary Site 

Plan Application.  This may require the granting of variances in order to 

allow 45 units on the property, as described in Exhibit A.  The Troy City 

Council shall not unreasonably withhold approval of variances that are 

needed to complete the development as proposed in the approved 

concept plan (attached as Exhibit B).  Such variances shall be reduced to 

writing, and also identified on the approved Preliminary Site Plan and Final 

Site Plan.  

4. If the Planning Director determines that the Defendant’s (or Defendant’s 

heirs, successors and assigns) Preliminary Site Plan Application 

substantially deviates from the approved conceptual plan (attached as 

Exhibit B), then the Troy City Council shall hold a public hearing, after 

which City Council shall either approve or deny the Preliminary Site Plan 



 4

Application, and approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.  However, 

the Troy City Council shall not approve the Preliminary Site Plan 

Application if it allows more than 45 units on the property, as described in 

Exhibit A.  The Troy City Council shall not unreasonably withhold approval 

of variances to the requirements of the Troy ordinances or development 

standards that are needed to permit 45 units to be developed on the 

property, which is described in Exhibit A.  Such variances shall be reduced 

to writing, and also identified on the approved Preliminary Site Plan and 

Final Site Plan.  

5. Plaintiff shall support Defendant’s request for a Letter of Map Revision 

(LOMR), if any, to floodway and/or floodplain on the property and will 

comply with all reasonable requests for documentation in support of the 

Defendant’s application for a LOMR.  If the Michigan Department of 

Environmental Quality (MDEQ) or the Federal Emergency Management 

Agency (FEMA) rules that all or a portion of the property on Exhibit A 

cannot be developed due to the existence of wetlands and/or floodway or 

floodplain or those agencies make rulings which negatively impact the 

development of the property, Defendant (or Defendant’s heirs, successors 

and assigns) will be allowed to request a revision and/or reconfiguration to 

the approved Conceptual Site Plan.  Consistent with paragraph 3 above, 

Plaintiff shall not unreasonably withhold the grant of variances for or 

approval of the revised proposed development.    



 5

6. Defendant and its attorneys shall not be required to pay back the Plaintiff 

any money previously paid to the Defendant by Plaintiff.  The Plaintiff shall 

not be required to pay the Defendant any additional money including 

interest and the Defendant waives any interest on any monies due under 

the terms of this Consent Judgment.  The Plaintiff will not be required to 

reimburse the Defendant for any attorney fees or costs it has or will 

expend, including but not limited to, appraisal fees and other expert fees, 

except as expressly set out in this Consent Judgment. 

7. Within thirty days of entry of this Consent Judgment, the Plaintiff shall pay 

Defendant’s attorney, Berry & Reynolds, P.C., $866,000.00 which will be 

paid directly to Berry & Reynolds, P.C., as payee without naming the 

Defendant as an additional payee, for costs and expenses, including 

expert fee and costs and attorney fees and costs.  The Plaintiff shall not 

be required to pay interest on this amount.  Plaintiff is under no further 

obligation to The Defendant for any costs and fees incurred in this 

litigation. 

8. A certified copy of this Consent Judgment with the Exhibits hereto shall be 

filed and recorded with the Oakland County Register of Deeds. 

9. Upon the completion of all obligations and payment of all amounts due 

under this Consent Judgment, any and all claims of Defendant which have 

been asserted or which could have been asserted against Plaintiff arising 

out of the taking of the subject property or by reason of any other claims 



 6

for damages which could or may have been asserted by reason of the 

commencement of the instant proceedings shall be forever barred. 

10. This Court retains jurisdiction to enforce the terms of this Consent 

Judgment. 

11. This Consent Judgment resolves the last pending claims and closes the 

case. 

 

      ______________________________ 
      Circuit Judge 
 
 
Approved as to substance and form; 
notice of entry waived 
 
 
_____________________________. 
Susan M. Lancaster (P33168) 
Attorney for Plaintiff 
 
 
 
_____________________________. 
David W. Berry (P25418) 
Ronald E. Reynolds (P40524) 
Attorneys for Defendant 
 
 
 





 
 
DATE:   November 17, 2004 

  
 

 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
    
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item - Public Hearing 

Request for Commercial Vehicle Appeal 
   1855 Boulan 
 

 
 

 
On October 20, 2004, a violation was issued for the outdoor parking of a commercial 
vehicle located on the residential property at 1855 Boulan.  In particular, a violation was 
issued for the parking of a Chevrolet cube van east of the garage.  In response to our 
violation Mr. Sregiu Botezan, a resident of the home and son of the property owner, has 
filed an appeal application for your consideration.  The appeal requests that a public 
hearing date be held in accordance with the ordinance.  A public hearing has been 
scheduled for your meeting of November 29, 2004. 
 
The main building on the property is 1,586 square feet in size.  Section 40.57.04 would 
allow a detached accessory building of 793 square feet.  There is also considerable 
room and setback available to build attached accessory buildings.  The 30% lot 
coverage rule would dictate the maximum building size and limit the size to 7,830 
square feet or an addition of 6,244 square feet. 
 
A request for a similar, but different, vehicle was heard and denied by City Council at 
their meeting of May 7, 2001.  A copy of those minutes are attached. 
 
Copies of the application, site plan, photos and map showing the 300’ notice area are 
attached for your reference.  Should you have any questions or require additional 
information, kindly advise. 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
 

bartholotl
Text Box
C-02









 



 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES May 7, 2001 
 

- 3 - 

C-1 Appeal of Dangerous Building Determination – 612 Trombley, Parcel #22-401-006 – 
Continued 

 
RESOLVED, That the resolution be amended subject to the following conditions: (1) Amend 
habitable or demolished date from May 28, 2001 to May 28, 2002; (2) Petitioner to install fence; 
(3) City Administration to provide a listing as to what work must be performed by the petitioner 
to remove the dangerous building status; (4) Petitioner to provide feedback to City 
Administration regarding completed work within 45 days; and (5) The 45 day requirement will 
be extended accordingly if a delay in work is caused due to restrictions set by a governmental 
agency. 
 
Yes: Pryor, Beltramini, Howrylak, Kaszubski, Lambert, Pallotta 
No: Schilling  
 
Vote on Amended Resolution 
 
Resolution #2001-05-229 
Moved by Pallotta  
Seconded by Kaszubski  
 
RESOLVED, That if the structure at 612 Trombley is not made habitable or demolished on or 
before “May 28, 2002”, then the City of Troy is authorized to cause the structure to be razed 
and removed either through an available public agency or by contract or arrangement with 
private persons, and the cost of such razing and removal shall be charged as a lien upon the 
property at 612 Trombley, Troy, MI subject to the following provisions “(1) Petitioner to install 
fence; (2) City Administration to provide a listing as to what work must be performed by the 
petitioner to remove the dangerous building status; (3) Petitioner to provide feedback to City 
Administration regarding completed work within 45 days; and (4) The 45 day requirement will 
be extended accordingly if a delay in work is caused due to restrictions set by a governmental 
agency.” 
 
Yes: Pryor, Beltramini, Howrylak, Kaszubski, Lambert, Pallotta 
No: Schilling  

POSTPONED ITEMS 

D-1 Request for Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 1855 Boulan 
 
Resolution #2001-05-230 
Moved by Pallotta  
Seconded by Schilling  
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES May 7, 2001 
 

- 4 - 

D-1 Request for Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 1855 Boulan – Continued 
 

A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 
compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 

C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 
cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has not found that the petitioner has 
demonstrated the presence of condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Cipitan Botezan, 1855 Boulan, 
for waiver of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor 
parking of a Ford cube van in a residential district is hereby denied. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Kaszubski, Lambert, Pallotta, Schilling  
No: Pryor, Howrylak  
 
RECESS 9:03 PM – 9:23 PM 
 

D-2 Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:   Award to Low Bidder – Remote Camera 
System 

 
Resolution #2001-05-231 
Moved by Pallotta  
Seconded by Schilling  
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to furnish and install one (1) remote camera system for Council 
Chambers is hereby awarded to the low bidder, Thalner Electronic Lab at an estimated total 
cost of $66,430.88. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is contingent upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all  











 
 
DATE:   November 17, 2004 

  
 

 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
    
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item - Public Hearing 

Request for Commercial Vehicle Appeal 
   2887 E. Wattles Road 
 

 
 

 
On October 21, 2002, City Council approved a commercial vehicle appeal for Mr. Costel 
Luca for a vehicle located on his residential property at 2887 E. Wattles.  In particular, a 
variance was granted for a period of two years to park a Ford cube van, outdoors on the 
property.  That variance has now expired.  In response to our recent contact, Mr. Luca 
has filed a new appeal application for your consideration.  The appeal requests that a 
public hearing date be held in accordance with the ordinance.  A public hearing has 
been scheduled for your meeting of November 29, 2004. 
 
The existing home on the property has only 808 square feet of ground floor area and we 
have no record of any existing accessory buildings on site.  The Zoning would permit up 
to 600 square feet of detached accessory building on this site.  The owner could also 
construct an attached garage within the limits of the setbacks and the 30% lot coverage.  
The 30% lot coverage maximum would limit the buildings to 5,460 square feet and 
therefore would allow an addition up to 4,652 square feet. 
 
Copies of the application, site plan, photos and 300’ notice map are attached for your 
reference.  Should you have any questions or require additional information, kindly 
advise. 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 

bartholotl
Text Box
C-03



 



 



 





 

 

 



 





 
 
DATE:   November 17, 2004 
 
 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item - Public Hearing 
   Commercial Vehicle Appeal 
   3035 Heritage 
 
 
 
 
On October 27, 2004, information was sent to Tai Hsiang Chiang that identified 
restrictions related to a commercial vehicle located on residential property.  As part of 
that information, they were advised that the GMC cube van parked on the property did 
not comply with the exceptions found in Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00.  They were given 
the option to remove the vehicle or appeal to City Council for relief of the Ordinance. 
 
In response to our letter, they filed an appeal.  The appeal requests that a public 
hearing date be held in accordance with the ordinance.  A public hearing has been 
scheduled for your meeting of November 29, 2004. 
 
The main building on this site is 1490 square feet.  Section 40.57.04 of the Zoning 
Ordinance would permit 745 square feet of accessory building to be built on this 
property.  Because of the increased setbacks required along a major thoroughfare such 
as Big Beaver Road, there is no room to add attached garages to the home even 
though the yard along the south side appears to be large.  There is also no direct 
vehicular access permitted to Big Beaver Road from this site. 
 
We have included copies of the application, photograph of the vehicle, site plan, and 
copy of the 300’ notice map for your reference. 
 
Should you have any questions or require additional information, kindly advise. 
 
   
Attachments 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

bartholotl
Text Box
C-04



 



 



 



 



 



 
 
DATE:   November 17, 2004 

  
 

 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
    
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item - Public Hearing 
   Parking Variance 
   1717 Stutz Drive 
 
 
 
 
We have received a permit application from Joseph Damico of Damico Contracting, Inc, 
for the alteration of an existing industrial building at 1717 Stutz Drive.  This is a tenant 
space in a multi tenant industrial building addressed 1715-1717 Stutz.  As part of that 
alteration, the plans include the installation of two new overhead doors on the south 
side of the building.  That area of the site currently contains the parking lot for the 
building.  The installation of the doors would eliminate 4 of the existing parking spaces. 
The resultant parking available for this site would be only 36 spaces.  Section 40.21.81 
of the Zoning Ordinance requires that for an industrial building of this size, a minimum of 
40 parking spaces be available on the site. 
 
In response to our denial of the permit application for this work, the applicants have 
submitted a request for variance for the 4 parking space deficiency.  A Public Hearing 
has been scheduled for your meeting of November 29, 2004, in accordance with 
Section 44.01.00. 
 
I should note that subsequent to denying the permit application, it has come to our 
attention that the overhead doors have already been installed at this site.  We have 
taken action to see that the overhead doors are not used until this matter can be 
resolved. 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

bartholotl
Text Box
C-05



 



 



 



 

 



 1

November 17, 2004 
 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE MAP 

AMENDMENT (Z-697) – West side of Crooks Road, North of Big Beaver 
Road, Section 20 – P-1 to O-1 and B-3.  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The rezoning application complies with the Future Land Use Plan and is compatible with 
adjacent zoning districts and land uses.  The Planning Commission considered this item 
at their Regular Meeting on October 12, 2004.  Following the Public Hearing on this item 
the Planning Commission recommended approval of the rezoning request.  City 
Management concurs with the Planning Commission recommendation.   
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owner is First American Title Corporation.  The applicant is Weiss Properties, LLC. 
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the west side of Crooks Road, north of Big Beaver Road in 
Section 20. 
 
Size of Subject Parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 3.11 acres in area.  
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
The property is currently vacant of buildings and structures.  A detention basin is 
located in the eastern half of the property and an off-street parking area is located in the 
southwest corner of the property. 
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
P-1 Vehicular Parking. 
 
Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
O-1 Office Building and B-3 General Business. 

bartholotl
Text Box
C-06



 2

Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
The applicant proposes a one-story retail building fronting on Crooks Road and a 3-
story office building at the rear of the parcel.   
 
Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Office. 
 
South: Office and restaurants. 
 
East: Office. 
 
West: Office. 
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: R-1B One Family Residential (controlled by Consent Judgment). 
 
South: P-1 Vehicular Parking and O-1 Office Building. 
 
East: O-M Office Mid-Rise. 
 
West: P-1 Vehicular Parking. 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Range of Uses Permitted in O-1:  
 

PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 
 
Office Buildings for any of the following occupations: executive, administrative; 
professional; accounting; writing; clerical stenographic; drafting; and sales. 
 
Medical office, including clinics. 
 
Banks, credit unions, savings and loan associations, and similar uses. Such uses 
may include drive-in facilities only as an accessory use. 
 
Publicly owned buildings, exchanges, and public utility offices. 
 
Other uses similar to the above uses. 
 
USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 
 
Uses customarily supporting or serving the Principal Uses permitted in this District, 
such as pharmacies or drug stores, optical services, copy services, office supplies, 
book stores, art galleries, or restaurants; provided that these uses are within the 



 3

building housing the Principal Uses which they support, and provided that there is 
no direct outside entrance for these uses separate from the entrance serving the 
Principal Uses.   
 
Data processing and computer centers, including sales support, service and 
maintenance of electronic data processing equipment.  The sales support, service 
and maintenance functions shall be accessory or secondary to the Principal Uses 
permitted in this District, and thus shall not be operated as independent businesses. 
 
Technical training uses, when such are accessory or secondary to the Principal 
Uses permitted in this District, and thus not operated as independent businesses. 

 
USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL: 
 
Mortuary establishments. 
 
Private service clubs fraternal organizations and lodge halls, including accessory 
structures and uses customarily incidental to such uses, racquet and athletic clubs.  
 
Private ambulance facilities.  
 
Utility sub-stations, transformer stations or gas regulator stations (without 
storage yards). 
 
Mechanical or laboratory research involving testing and evaluation of products, or 
prototype or experimental product or process development. 
 
Child care centers, nursery schools, or day nurseries (not including dormitories). 
 

Range of Uses Permitted in O-1: 
 

PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 
 
Any retail business or service establishment permitted in B-2 Districts as Principal 
Uses Permitted and Uses Permitted Subject to Special Conditions. 
 
Mortuary establishments. 
 
Bus or transit passenger stations, taxicab offices and dispatching centers, and 
emergency vehicle or ambulance facilities.  
 
Parking garages and off-street parking areas. 
 
Sales, showrooms, and incidental repair of recreational vehicles. 



 4

New and used car salesroom, showroom, or office. 
 
Governmental offices, public utility offices, exchanges, transformer stations, pump 
stations and service yards but not including outdoor storage. 
 
Other uses similar to the above uses. 
 
Accessory structures and uses customarily incident to the above permitted uses. 
 
USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 
 
Drive-up windows or service facilities, as an accessory to restaurants permitted 
within this district. 
 
Drive-up service facilities, as accessory to principal permitted uses within B-3 
Districts, apart from restaurants. 
 
Bowling alley, billiard hall, indoor archery range, indoor skating rinks, indoor tennis 
courts, athletic or heath clubs, or similar forms of indoor commercial recreation, 
when the subject uses are located at least 100 feet from any Residential District. 
 
Open air business uses when developed as uses subordinate to primary uses and 
structures within the B-3 District. 

 
Outside seating of twenty (20) seats or less for restaurants, or other food service 
establishments. 

 
USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL 
 
Persons seeking Special Use Approval for specified uses governed by this Article 
shall conform to the requirements of Section 03.30.00. 
 
Outdoor sales space for exclusive sale or lease of new or second-hand 
automobiles, trucks, mobile homes, trailers, or recreational vehicles. 
 
Motel or Hotel. 
 
Veterinary hospitals or clinics, provided all activities are conducted within a totally 
enclosed main building and provided further that all abutting or adjacent property is 
non-residentially zoned. 
 
Commercial Kennels. 
 
Automobile repair garages, provided all activities are conducted within a completely 
enclosed building.  Such uses shall not include the sale of fuels, vehicle body repair, 



 5

painting, refinishing, tire recapping, auto dismantling, or other such activities whose 
external effects could adversely extend beyond the property lines. 
 
Outside seating areas, in excess of twenty (20) seats, for restaurants, or other food 
service establishments. 

 
Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
The property fronts on Crooks Road and Wilshire Boulevard.  
 
Potential Storm Water and Utility Issues: 
The applicant will be required to provide on-site detention. 
 
Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are no significant natural features located on 
the property. 
 
Compliance with Future Land Use Plan: 
The Future Land Use Plan classifies the front of the property as Non-Center 
Commercial and the rear of the property as Low Rise Office.  According to the Future 
Land Use Plan, the Low Rise Office plan designation has a primary correlation with the 
O-1 Office Building District.  The Non-Center Commercial plan designation has a 
primary correlation with the B-3 Zoning District.  The application is therefore consistent 
with the Future Land Use Plan.  
 
Compliance with Location Standards: 
The B-3 General Business District does not contain location Standards.   
 
Article 24.40.10 Location Standards states the following: “The O-1 (Office Building) District 
may be applied when the application of such a classification is consistent with the intent of 
the Master Land Use Planning and policies related thereto, and therefore involves the 
following types of areas: 
 
 24.40.11 Areas indicated as low-rise office. 
 
The application is therefore consistent with the Location Standards of the O-1 Office 
Building District. 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps. 
2. Minutes from October 12, 2004 Planning Commission Regular Meeting. 

 
cc: Applicant 
 File (Z 697) 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-697 Crooks Road Office and Development\CC Public Hearing Crooks Rd Rezoning 11 29 04.doc 
 
Prepared by RBS 













PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 12, 2004 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 12, 2004 
 

REZONING REQUEST 
 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 697) – Proposed Crooks 
Office and Retail Development, West side of Crooks, North of Big Beaver, 
Section 20 – From P-1 (Vehicular Parking) to O-1 (Low Rise Office) and B-3 
(General Business) 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed rezoning.  Mr. Miller reported that it is the recommendation of the 
Planning Department to approve the rezoning request.   
 
Michael Boggio of 30100 Telegraph Road, Bingham Farms, was present to 
represent the petitioner.  Mr. Boggio demonstrated, with the use of display 
boards, the extension of the B-3 and O-1 zoning northward to Wilshire Boulevard 
that is in conformance with the Future Land Use Plan.  Mr. Boggio indicated that, 
with site plan approval, the proposed development would provide future access 
from Wilshire Boulevard to the properties to the south.  He said the access would 
be a welcome addition to area.   
 
Mr. Strat asked if the proposed O-1 zoning would be landlocked.   
 
Mr. Boggio replied that there is an easement currently to the west that would 
allow traffic from the O-1 zoned property to enter and exit out to Big Beaver.  He 
noted the petitioner has control over the entire piece of property, and would be 
proposing easements between the B-3 and O-1 zoned properties.  Mr. Boggio 
further addressed site plan issues with respect to cross access easements to the 
west and south and a new curb cut approach to the new development.  
 
Chair Waller asked why the proposed B-3 zoning is further to the west than the 
existing B-3 zoning property line. 
 
Mr. Boggio replied that the B-3 zoning is extended further to the west to alleviate 
parking difficulties during lunch hours in the development.   
 
Mr. Littman asked if the property to the west would have cross access easement 
to the new development.   
 
The petitioner, Harvey Weiss of 6960 Orchard Lake Road, West Bloomfield, was 
present.  Mr. Weiss said there is an agreement with First American Title to give 
the proposed development access to Big Beaver Road and, in turn, they would 
be given access to Crooks Road.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 12, 2004 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 12, 2004 
 

 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-10-115 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the P-1 to O-1 and B-3 rezoning request, located on the west side of 
Crooks Road and north of Big Beaver Road, within Section 20, being 3.11 acres 
in size, be granted.   
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Chamberlain, Khan, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 



DATE:  November 17, 2004 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM - PUBLIC HEARING - ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT 

AMENDMENT FOR ARTICLE 34.70.00  ONE FAMILY CLUSTER OPTION 
(ZOTA 200) 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
This item was tabled at the September 27, 2004 City Council meeting and referred to City 
Management to address City Council concerns.   
 
The Planning Commission and City Management have developed new provisions for a 
One Family Cluster Option.  Presently cluster developments are permitted through the 
application of the CR-1 One Family Residential Cluster District.  This zoning district is 
generally difficult to apply since it involves rezoning of the property.  In addition, the 
rezoning approval standards can be difficult to meet.  The proposed One Family Cluster 
Option is intended to be easier to apply, thereby encouraging its application.   
 
The general intent of this text amendment is to permit cluster development by right in the 
R-1A through R-1E districts.  Densities will be identical as those permitted in the R-1A 
through R-1E districts, as determined by the required parallel plan.  To qualify for this 
option, a minimum of 30% of the parcel must be dedicated open space.  Applicants can 
qualify for up to a 20% density bonus if the development provides at least 50% of 
dedicated open space and demonstrates design excellence, as recommended by the 
Planning Commission and determined by City Council. 
 
The Planning Commission held a Public Hearing on this item on July 13, 2004.  Following 
the Public Hearing, the Planning Commission recommended approval of ZOTA 200.  City 
Management agrees with the Planning Commission and recommends approval of the 
proposed text amendment. 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
It must be stressed that the One Family Cluster Option is an option; it is not a mandatory 
requirement.  The primary intent of the One Family Cluster provisions is to maintain and 
preserve open space and natural features, such as those that exist along the Beach Road 
Corridor.  While it will be permissible for developers to add amenities such as playing fields 
and landscaped gardens, most open space subdivisions in Michigan are characterized by 
open space that is simply left alone in its natural state.  The cost of maintenance of 
property that is left in its natural state is minimal compared to open space that requires 

bittnera
Text Box
D-01



regular maintenance.  All residential developments could construct amenities under the 
existing development regulations and financial impacts; for example, an extensive 
landscaped subdivision entrance.  
 
It is the responsibility of a purchaser of a unit in a cluster development to find out what the 
maintenance costs will be prior to purchasing a unit.  Section 34.70.03 of the draft 
provisions require that a detailed narrative and graphic plan be provided that indicates 
specific methods for protecting significant natural features.  Section 34.70.06.H requires 
that standards for scheduled maintenance of the open space be included in the irrevocable 
conveyance.  This information will be available to prospective purchasers through title work 
and City records.   
 
Randall Arendt is one of the nation’s leading proponents of cluster developments, often 
referred to as conservation subdivisions.  He summarizes the conservation subdivision 
design process in his book Growing Greener:  Putting Conservation into Local Plans and 
Ordinances (Island Press, 1999).  A summary of this process is included for informational 
purposes. 
 
The Planning Department has prepared drawings to illustrate the one family cluster option 
concept.  The parcel in question is rectangular-shaped, with approximately 100 feet of 
woodlands along the southern and eastern property line and a small non-regulated 
wetland in the northwest corner.  The underlying zoning is R-1C.  The parallel plan 
indicates that if the wetland were to be filled and the trees cut down (which is permitted 
under current zoning), the layout would yield 11 units (Drawing #1).  If the cluster option 
were utilized, the 11 units would be located in such a way to preserve most of the trees as 
well as all of the wetland (Drawing #2).  The required 30% open space would be 
conserved and dedicated to the use of all of the residents of the development. 
 
 
cc: File/ZOTA #200 
 Planning Commission 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. “The Four-Step Approach to Designing Conservation Subdivisions”, from Growing Greener: 

Putting Conservation into Local Plans and Ordinances, by Randall Arendt, Island Press, 1999. 
2. One Family Cluster Option drawings. 
3. ZOTA #200, dated 09/03/04. 
4. Report for September 27, 2004 City Council meeting, dated September 20, 2004. 
5. Minutes from September 27, 2004 City Council Meeting. 
6. Minutes from July 13, 2004 Planning Commission Public Hearing. 
7. Minutes from June 22, 2004 Planning Commission Special/Study Meeting. 
8. Public comment. 
 
Prepared by:  MFM, RBS, PPB 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 200 CR-1 ONE FAMILY CLUSTER OPTION\CC Public Hearing Memo 11 17 04.doc 

























 

 1

PROPOSED ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
(ZOTA 200) 

09/03/04 
Text Amendment for One Family Cluster Option 

 
CITY OF TROY 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 39 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Amendment to Chapter 39 
 
Chapter 39 of the City of Troy Code is amended by the addition of a new section 
34.70.00 to read as follows: 
 
34.70.00 ONE FAMILY CLUSTER OPTION  
 
34.70.01 The One Family Cluster Option is offered as an alternative to traditional 

residential development for the purpose of: 
 

A. Encouraging the use of property in accordance with its natural 
character. 

 
B. Assuring the permanent preservation of open space and other 

natural features. 
 
C. Providing recreational facilities and/or open space within a 

reasonable distance of all residents of the One Family Cluster 
development. 

 
D. Allowing innovation and greater flexibility in the design of 

residential developments.  
 
E. Facilitating the construction and maintenance of streets, utilities 

and public services in a more economical and efficient manner. 
 
F. Ensuring compatibility of design and use between neighboring 

property. 
 
G. Encouraging a less sprawling form of development, thus 

preserving open space as undeveloped land.  
 
 
 



 

 2

 
34.70.02 Eligibility Criteria 

 
To be eligible for One Family Cluster consideration, the applicant must 
present a proposal for residential development that meets each of the 
following subsections (A-G): 
 

 A. Recognizable Benefits.   
 
One Family Cluster shall result in a recognizable and substantial benefit, 
both to the residents of the property and to the overall quality of life in the 
City.  The recognizable and substantial benefits can be provided through 
site design elements that are in excess of the requirements of this 
Ordinance, such as extensive landscaping, the inclusion of a transition 
area  from adjacent residential land uses, and preservation of individual 
trees, wetlands (regulated and non-regulated), woodland areas and open 
space. 
 

 B. Open Space.   
 
The proposed development shall provide at least one of the following 
open space benefits:  
 
 1. Significant Natural Assets.  Preservation of significant 

natural assets contained on the site, such as  significant 
individual trees (over 10 inch diameter), woodland areas, 
rolling topography with pre-development grades exceeding 
15%, significant views, natural drainage ways, water 
bodies, floodplains, regulated or non-regulated wetlands, 
as long as it is in the best interest of the City to preserve 
these natural features which might be negatively impacted 
by conventional residential development. The 
determination of whether the site has significant natural 
assets shall be made by the Planning Commission and 
City Council after review of a Site Analysis Plan, prepared 
by the applicant, that inventories these features.  

 
 2. Recreation Facilities.  If the site lacks significant natural 

features, it can qualify with the provision of usable 
recreation facilities to which all residents of the 
development shall have reasonable access.  Such 
recreation facilities include areas such as a neighborhood 
park, passive recreational facilities, soccer fields, ball 
fields, bike paths, or similar facilities that provide a feature 
of community-wide significance and enhance residential 
development.  Recreational facilities that are less pervious 
than natural landscape shall not comprise more than fifty 
(50) percent of the open space. 



 

 3

 
 3. Creation of Natural Features.  If the site lacks significant 

natural features, a proposed development may also qualify 
if the development will create significant natural features 
such as wetlands. 

 
 C. Guarantee of Open Space.   

 
The applicant shall provide documentation to guarantee to the satisfaction 
of the Planning Commission and City Council that all open space portions 
of the development will be maintained as approved and that all 
commitments for such maintenance are binding on successors and future 
owners of the subject property.  All such documents shall be subject to 
approval by the City Attorney.  This provision shall not prohibit a transfer 
of ownership or control, provided notice of such transfer is provided to the 
City, and that the continued maintenance guarantees remain satisfactory 
to the City, and the land uses continue as approved in the One Family 
Cluster development.  
 

 D. Cohesive Neighborhood.   
 
The proposed development shall be designed to create a cohesive 
community neighborhood through common open space areas for passive 
or active recreation and resident interaction.  All open space areas shall 
be reasonably accessible to all residents of the development. 
 

 E. Unified Control.   
 
The proposed development site shall be under single ownership or 
control, such that there is a single person or entity having proprietary 
responsibility for the full completion of the project.  The applicant shall 
provide sufficient documentation of ownership or control in the form of 
agreements, contracts, covenants, and/or deed restrictions that indicate 
that the development will be completed in its entirety as proposed.  All 
documents shall be subject to the review and approval by the City 
Attorney. 
 

 F. Density Impact. 
 
The proposed type and density of use shall not place an unreasonable 
impact on the subject and/or surrounding land and/or property owners 
and occupants and/or the natural environment.  An unreasonable impact 
shall be considered an unacceptable significant adverse effect on the 
quality of the surrounding community and the natural environment in 
comparison to the impacts associated with conventional development.   
 

 G. Future Land Use Plan. 
 
The proposed development shall be consistent with the Future Land Use 
Plan. 



 

 4

 
H. Zoning 
 
The land is zoned for R-1A, R-1B, R-1C, R-1D or R-1E residential 
development.   
 

34.70.03 Application Information Requirements: In addition to the information 
required by the City of Troy for all other site plans, any development 
proposing to utilize the  One Family Cluster Plan shall contain the following:  

   
A. A complete description of the land proposed to be dedicated for 

the common use of lot owners in the association or to the City, 
including the following: 

 
  1. A legal description of dedicated open space required by 

Section 34.70.03(B), including dedicated easements. 
 
2. A topographical and boundary survey of dedicated open 

space. 
 
3. An identification of the types of soil in dedicated open 

space. 
  
4. A Natural Features Plan that inventories all significant 

natural features on the property and on abutting properties, 
if applicable. 

 
B. Information regarding current and proposed ownership and use of 

the dedicated open space, including the following:  
 

  1. The proposed ownership and control of the open space. 
 
2. The proposed methods  of regulating the use of the 

common facilities and areas so as to eliminate possible 
nuisances to other property owners and/or nuisances that 
require enforcement by the City of Troy.   

 
3. The proposed and/or potential uses of dedicated open 

space and the proposed improvements to be constructed 
by the developer. 

 
4. A timeline setting forth the anticipated dates of  the 

dedication of the open space for the common use of unit 
owners in the association or to the City of Troy. 
 

C. A detailed narrative and graphic plan  that indicates a specific 
method(s) for protecting significant natural features including 
significant (over 10 inches in diameter) individual trees, 
woodlands, wetlands, and open space during construction.  The 
plan shall be consistent with the City’s tree preservation 
requirements, and shall be agreeable to the developer, who shall 



 

 5

so indicate with his/her signature on the detailed narrative and 
graphic plan.  

 
D. Other relevant information necessary to show that the proposed 

development qualifies for approval as a One Family Cluster 
development. 

 
34.70.04 Dwelling Unit Density:  

 A. The number of dwelling units allowable within the 
One Family Cluster development shall be determined by the 
applicant through the preparation of a parallel plan for the 
subject property that is consistent with State, County and 
City requirements and design criteria for a tentative 
preliminary plat or unplatted site condominium. The parallel 
plan shall meet all standards for lot/unit size, lot/unit width 
and setbacks as normally required for the underlying one-
family zoning district.  The number of units identified in the 
parallel plan shall determine the number of units permitted in 
the development. 

 
 B.  Density Bonus.  A variable density bonus of up to twenty 

(20) percent may be allowed at the discretion of the City 
Council, after recommendation from the Planning 
Commission, based upon a demonstration by the applicant 
of design excellence in the One Family Cluster 
development.  Projects qualifying for a density bonus shall 
include a minimum of fifty (50) percent of the property (One 
Family Cluster) to be dedicated open space held in 
common ownership.  In addition, projects qualifying for a 
density bonus shall include at least one (1) of the following 
elements: 

 
1. The inclusion of perimeter transition areas of at least one 

hundred fifty feet (150 feet) in width around all borders of 
the development. 

 
     2. Provisions and design that preserve natural features, 

including use of bio-retention techniques and sustainable 
building features. 

 
     3. Donation or contribution of land or amenities in order to 

provide a significant community benefit, such as for a 
school, park, fire hall, etc. 

 
4. Other similar elements that the City Council, after 

recommendation from the Planning Commission, 
determined to be of exceptional quality. 

 
34.70.05 Regulatory Flexibility:  The City shall permit specific departures from the 

dimensional requirements of the Zoning Ordinance for yards and units as a 
part of the approval process.  The applicant may cluster the dwellings on 



 

 6

smaller lots, as long as the following requirements are satisfied:  
 

A. Overall density shall not exceed the number of residential cluster 
units determined in 34.70.04 above.  

 
B. Setback provisions shall be as follows: 

 
1. Setback requirements for principal structures from 
all of the borders of the development  shall be equal to the 
rear yard setback requirement for the  underlying zoning 
district of the property directly adjacent to each border.  
The required open space areas may be located partially or 
completely within the required setback. 

 
2. Setback requirements for principal structures on the 

interior of the development shall be as follows:  If property 
lines do not exist between houses, the setbacks shall be 
measured to an imaginary line of equal distance between 
the houses.  A duplex shall be treated as a single-
detached residence for the purpose of determining 
required setbacks.  The minimum setbacks shall be as 
follows. 

 
Front: 20’.  There shall be at least 25’ between the 

garage door and the closest edge of the 
sidewalk to allow for an automobile to be 
parked in the driveway without obstructing 
the sidewalk.  

 
Rear:  25’. 
 
Side: 7.5’.  For detached units with “rear-to-side” 

relationships, the required setback shall be 
15’ for each unit, for a total of 30’.  

 
C. All regulations applicable to parking, loading, general provisions, 

and other requirements shall be met. 
 
D. The permitted uses shall be restricted to single family detached 

residential development, duplex residential development, 
residential accessory structures, non-commercial recreation uses 
and open space. 

 
34.70.06 Open Space Requirements: 
 

A. All land within a development that is not devoted to a residential 
unit, accessory structures, vehicle access, vehicle parking, a 
roadway, or an approved improvement, shall be set aside as 
common land for recreation, conservation, or preserved in an 
undeveloped state.   



 

 7

 
 B. A One Family Cluster development shall maintain a minimum of 

thirty percent (30%) of the gross area of the site as dedicated open 
space held in common ownership.   A minimum of twenty-five 
percent (25%) of the open space shall be upland area, which does 
not include any MDEQ-regulated or non-regulated wetlands that are 
accessible to all residents of the development. 

 
C. Areas Not Considered Open Space.  The following land areas are 

not included as dedicated open space for the purposes of the One-
Family Cluster development  option: 

 
1. The area of any street right-of-way or private drive.   
 

 2. The submerged area of any lakes, rivers, ponds or streams.   
 

3. The required setbacks surrounding a residential structure, 
except as otherwise provided. 

 
4. Storm water detention or retention facilities, with the 

exception of Bio-retention areas that provide an active or 
passive recreation function, which can be  considered open 
space.  

 
D. The common open space may be centrally located along the road 

frontage of the development, located to preserve significant natural 
features, or located to connect open spaces throughout the 
development.  The open space along the exterior public roads shall 
have a depth of at least one hundred (100) feet, either landscaped 
or preserved in a natural wooded condition.   In its discretion, the 
City Council, after recommendation from the Planning Commission, 
may permit either minor reductions in width or variations in width of 
the open space along exterior roads to accommodate taking into 
consideration topographic and/or other natural resource conditions, 
as long as the density of existing vegetation to be preserved, and 
size and shape of the development area are taken into 
consideration.  The open space along the exterior public roads shall 
be landscaped with a minimum of one (1) deciduous canopy tree (3 
to 3 ½ inches in diameter) for each ten (10) feet of road frontage.  
Such plantings shall be planted in staggered rows or clustered into 
groupings to provide a natural appearance, and shall be planted so 
as to have minimal impact on the future usability of sidewalks and 
trails.  Preservation of existing trees shall be credited towards 
meeting the frontage landscaping requirement. 

 
 E. Principal access to the development shall be provided by 28 foot 

wide public streets constructed to City standards that are located 
within sixty (60) foot wide rights-of- way or by 28 foot wide streets 
constructed to City public street standards that are located, within 40 
foot private easements for public access. 



 

 8

 
Sidewalks shall be constructed across the frontage of all dwelling 
unit parcels in accordance with City standards,  Public utilities shall 
be placed within street rights-of-way, or within easements approved 
as to size and location by the City Engineer. 

 
F. Connections between the dedicated open space of the 

development and adjacent open space, public land or existing or 
planned safety paths is preferred and may be required by the City 
Council, after recommendation from the Planning Commission. 

 
 G. The dedicated open space shall be set aside by the developer 

through an irrevocable conveyance, such as deed restrictions, 
restrictive covenants, conservation easements, plat dedication, or 
other legal documents that are subject to review and approval by 
the  City Council, after review and recommendation by the City 
Attorney.  These irrevocable conveyance documents shall be 
approved prior to final approval of the development (final site plan 
approval), and the developer shall record such documents with the 
Oakland County Register of Deeds.  These irrevocable  conveyance  
documents shall specifically identify the City of Troy or the common 
owners as beneficiary of its provisions. 
 

H. The irrevocable conveyance referenced in subsection (G) shall 
assure that the open space will be protected from all forms of 
development, except as shown on the approved Final Site Plan.  
Such conveyance shall indicate the proposed allowable use(s) of 
the dedicated open space.  The open space restrictions shall 
prohibit uses or activities that negatively affect the dedicated open 
space, including the following: 

 
   1. Dumping or storing of any material or refuse. 
 

2. Activity that may cause risk of soil erosion or threaten any 
living plant material. 
 

3. Cutting or removal of live plant material except for removal 
of dying or diseased vegetation. 

 
4. Use of motorized off-road vehicles. 

 
5. Cutting, filling or removal of vegetation from wetland areas 

 
6. Use of pesticides, herbicides or fertilizers within any 

wetlands area. 
 

I. The irrevocable conveyance referenced in subsection (G) shall 
provide the following: 



 

 9

 
1. The dedicated open space shall be perpetually maintained 

by parties that have an ownership interest in the open 
space. 

 
2. Standards for scheduled maintenance of the open space. 

 
3. If the owners of the dedicated open space have failed to 

maintain it so that it becomes a public nuisance, then the 
City shall undertake all future maintenance, and shall 
annually assess the costs for such maintenance upon the 
property owners in the association, based on the benefit 
allocation for each property.  

 
J. Continuing Obligation.  The dedicated open space shall forever 

remain open space, subject only to uses approved by the City on 
the approved Final Site Plan.   

 
K. Allowable structures.  Any structures or buildings accessory to a 

recreation or conservation use may be erected within the dedicated 
open space.  These accessory structures or buildings shall not 
exceed one percent (1%) of the required open space area. 

 
 
Chapter 39 of the City of Troy Code is amended by the re-numbering of section 
04.20.121 to 04.20.120, and by the addition of new sections 04.20.121 and 04.20.122 to 
read as follows: 
 
 
04.20.1201 OPEN FRONT STORE: a business establishment so developed that service 

to the patron be extended beyond the walls of the structure, not requiring the 
patron to enter the structure.  The term "open front store" shall not include 
automobile repair stations, automobile service stations, or uses involving 
drive-up windows or service pedestals. 

 
04.20.121 OPEN SPACE: A parcel or area of land that is intended to provide light 

and air, and is designed for either resource protection, aesthetic, or 
recreational purposes.  Open space uses may include, but are not limited 
to, lawns, decorative plantings, walkways, active and passive recreation 
areas, land use buffers, playgrounds, fountains, woodlands, wetlands and 
bio retention facilities.  Open space shall not be deemed to include 
streets, driveways, parking lots, or other surfaces designed or intended 
for vehicular traffic  

 
04.20.122 OPEN SPACE, COMMON: Open space within or related to a development, 

not in individually owned lots, which is designed for and dedicated to the 
common use or enjoyment of the residents of the development or general 
public. 



 

 10

 
Chapter 39 of the City of Troy Code is amended by the addition of new section 10.20.09 
to read as follows: 
 
10.20.09 The One Family Cluster Option may be utilized in the R-1A through R-1E 

districts, subject to the requirements of Section 34.70.00. 
 
Section 2.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at 
a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the 
____ day of ________________, 2004. 
 
 
 
______________________ 
Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
______________________ 
Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 200 CR-1 ONE FAMILY CLUSTER OPTION\One Family Cluster Option Draft 09 03 04.doc 
 



DATE:  September 20, 2004 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING - ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT FOR 

ARTICLE 34.70.00  ONE FAMILY CLUSTER OPTION (ZOTA #200) 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Planning Commission and City Management have developed new provisions for a 
One Family Cluster Option.  Presently cluster developments are permitted through the 
application of the CR-1 One Family Residential Cluster District.  This zoning district is 
generally difficult to apply since it involves rezoning of the property.  In addition, the 
rezoning approval standards can be difficult to meet.  The proposed One Family Cluster 
Option is intended to be easier to apply, thereby encouraging its application.   
 
The general intent of this text amendment is to permit cluster development by right in the 
R-1A through R-1E districts.  Densities will be identical as those permitted in the R-1A 
through R-1E districts, as determined by the required parallel plan.  To qualify for this 
option, a minimum of 30% of the parcel must be dedicated open space.  Applicants can 
qualify for up to a 20% density bonus if the development provides at least 50% of 
dedicated open space and demonstrates design excellence, as recommended by the 
Planning Commission and determined by City Council. 
 
The Planning Commission held a Public Hearing on this item on July 13, 2004.  Following 
the Public Hearing, the Planning Commission recommended approval of ZOTA #200.  City 
Management agrees with the Planning Commission and recommends approval of the 
proposed text amendment. 
 
 
 
Reviewed as to Form and Legality: _________________________ _______ 
      Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney Date 
 
cc: File/ZOTA #200 
 Planning Commission 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. ZOTA #200, dated 09/03/04.  
2. Minutes from July 13, 2004 Planning Commission Public Hearing. 
3. Minutes from June 22, 2004 Planning Commission Special/Study Meeting. 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 200 CR-1 ONE FAMILY CLUSTER OPTION\CC Public Hearing Memo 09 20 04.doc 





PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 13, 2004 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 13, 2004 

 
7. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 200) – 

Article 34.70.00  One Family Cluster Option 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of ZOTA 200.  Mr. Miller reviewed clarifications 
and/or corrections to the following sections of the proposed zoning ordinance text 
amendment:  34.70.02 (B)(1), 34.70.05 (A) and 34.70.06 (D). 
 
A thorough discussion followed on the size of trees to be planted.  After a straw 
vote, the tree size determined was 3 to 3.5 dbh.   
 
A discussion followed on the wording of Section 34.70.02 (B)(1).  It was determined 
that the paragraph should read:  “…significant individual trees, significant 
individual trees ten inches in diameter or larger…”. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-07-077 
 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Article 34.70.00, Article 10.20.09 and Articles 04.20.120 through 
04.20.122 of the Zoning Ordinance, be amended as printed on the Updated 
Version, dated 06/29/04, and the changes noted by the Planning Director on the 
paragraphs 34.70.02 (B)(1), 34.70.05 (A) and 34.70.06 (D). 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Khan, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JUNE 22, 2004 

10. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 200) – Article 34.70.00  One 
Family Cluster Option 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary on ZOTA 200, One Family Cluster Option.  
He presented four drawings to demonstrate alternative versions of the cluster 
development option; i.e., parallel plan, cluster development based on proposed 
language, cluster development based on proposed language with 20% density 
bonus and formula plan (3.8 units per acre).   
 
There was a lengthy discussion on the parallel plan versus the formula plan. 
 
Mr. Khan expressed his thoughts and experience on cluster development using 
both the parallel and formula plans.  Mr. Khan prefers the formula plan and 
believes that most developers prefer the formula plan because it invariably allows 
for a larger lot size development.  He cited several examples of his experience 
with cluster developments in community cities.  Mr. Khan said the proposed 20% 
bonus would create a problem, and noted that the proposed amendment does 
not address preservation issues. 
 
Mr. Carlisle does not recommend the formula method.  He said that because 
characteristics are so different for every property, the parallel plan is the only 
reasonable plan to utilize.  Mr. Carlisle acknowledged the fact that the City’s non-
regulated wetlands and non-restrictive tree ordinance may be factors in cluster 
development in Troy.   Mr. Carlisle said a density bonus might be necessary in 
Troy because cluster development has not been a practice.  He cited benefits of 
offering a density bonus would be reduced infrastructure costs and increased 
values.  Mr. Carlisle said the quality of the development would bring higher 
values because people are looking for an open space environment.   Mr. Carlisle 
encouraged that criteria be set in the ordinance as a basis for the bonus 
determination.   
 
Chair Waller said that saving open space, roads, trees, and wetlands should be 
kept in mind as the City’s goal.   
 
Mr. Miller stated that the CR-1 zoning district is not very good as it currently 
stands, and an alternative option should be provided.  Mr. Miller said the CR-1 
zoning district should not be removed because non-conforming uses would be 
created for the five developments currently in the CR-1 zoning district.  He said 
the Planning Commission has indicated a desire to preserve natural features 
without creating an ordinance, and to use creativity in the development of small 
infill properties.  
 
Ms. Lancaster suggested consideration be given to the development of mini 
residential PUD’s.   
 
Chair Waller confirmed the Public Hearing is scheduled for the July 13, 2004 
Regular Meeting.   
 
[Mr. Carlisle exited the meeting.] 

















CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft November 15, 2004 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, November 15, 2004, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:31 PM. 

Pastor Marvin Walker, Faith Apostolic Church, gave the Invocation and the Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag was given. 

 ROLL CALL 

PRESENT: Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin E. Beltramini  
Cristina Broomfield  
David Eisenbacher  
David A. Lambert  
Jeanne M. Stine 

ABSENT: Martin F. Howrylak 

Resolution to Excuse Council Member Howrylak   
 
Resolution #2004-11-585 
Moved by Beltramini    
Seconded by Stine    
 
RESOLVED, That Council Member Howrylak’s absence at the Regular City Council meeting 
and Closed Session of November 15, 2004 be EXCUSED due to being out of the City. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent:  Howrylak  

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  Mayor Schilling presented Pam Brady with a proclamation on behalf of 
America Recycles Day – November 15, 2004. Mayor Schilling presented members of the 
religious community with a proclamation on behalf of Christian Heritage Week – 
November 21 – 27, 2004. 

 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  No Carryover Items Submitted 

PUBLIC HEARINGS:  No Public Hearings Requested 

POSTPONED ITEMS: 

D-1 Standard Resolution #4 for Big Oak Trail Paving, SAD No. 04.201.1 
  
Resolution #2004-11-586 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Beltramini  

bartholotl
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft November 15, 2004 
 

- 2 - 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council has caused Special Assessment Roll No. 04.201.1 to be 
prepared for the purpose of defraying the Special Assessment District’s portion of the following 
described public improvement in the City of Troy: Bituminous Paving of Big Oak Trail. 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council and the City Assessor have met after due legal notice and have 
reviewed said Special Assessment Roll and have heard all persons interested in said Special 
Assessment Roll appearing at said hearing. 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council is satisfied with said Special Assessment Roll as prepared by the 
City Assessor. 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Special Assessment Roll No. 04.201.1 in the amount of 
$25,850.00 is hereby CONFIRMED as prepared by the City Assessor; a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent:  Howrylak  

D-2 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment For Article 03.40, Site Plan Review / Approval 
(ZOTA 199) 

 
Reconsidered Resolution as Amended 
Resolution # 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That Article III (Site Plan Review/Approval), of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance, 
be AMENDED to read as written in the PROPOSED ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT 
AMENDMENT (ZOTA 199), dated August 4, 2004, as recommended by the Planning 
Commission and City Management, and as further AMENDED by Troy City Council as follows: 
 
“One year” be STRICKEN and “two years” be INSERTED in the second, third, and fourth 
sentences of Section 03.41.04; and 
 
“One-year” be STRICKEN and “two years” be INSERTED in Section 03.41.04; and 
 
“One-hundred (100)” be STRICKEN and “fifty (50)” be INSERTED in Section 03.43.01 (8) (o). 
 
Yes:  
No: 
 
Substitute Amendment Resolution 
Resolution #2004-11-587 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Stine  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft November 15, 2004 
 

- 3 - 

RESOLVED, That the postponed resolution regarding Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment for 
Article 03.40, Site Plan Review / Approval (ZOTA 199), be AMENDED by substituting 
“RESOLVED, That City Council AUTHORIZES the City Manager to work with the Planning 
Commission to develop Site Plan Review requirements based upon City Council and the 
Builders Task Force comments” for the postponed resolution in its entirety. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent:  Howrylak  
 
Vote on Amended Main Motion 
Resolution #2004-11-588 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That the postponed resolution regarding Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment for 
Article 03.40, Site Plan Review / Approval (ZOTA 199), be AMENDED by substituting 
“RESOLVED, That City Council AUTHORIZES the City Manager to work with the Planning 
Commission to develop Site Plan Review requirements based upon City Council and the 
Builders Task Force comments” for the postponed resolution in its entirety. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent:  Howrylak  
    
Planning Commission Direction Regarding Amending Zoning Ordinance 03.40 Site Plan 
Review 
 
Resolution # 
Moved by Eisenbacher   
Seconded by Broomfield   
 
RESOLVED, That City of Troy ESTABLISH a procedure to communicate by email to interested 
parties and by letter to the President of the Builders Task Force when there are proposed 
changes to the ordinance that involve things that will effect the building procedure. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent:  Howrylak  
 
Amendment 
Resolution #2004-11-589 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Eisenbacher   
 
RESOLVED, That the resolution regarding Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment for Article 
03.40, Site Plan Review Planning Commission Review, be AMENDED by striking “by email to 
interested parties and by letter to the President of the Builders Task Force “ and inserting “by 
letter to the Builders Task Force and other parties by electronic mail when requested. “ 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft November 15, 2004 
 

- 4 - 

 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent:  Howrylak  
 
Vote on Amended Main Motion 
Resolution #2004-11-590 
Moved by Eisenbacher    
Seconded by Broomfield    
 
RESOLVED, That City of Troy ESTABLISH a procedure to communicate by letter to the 
Builders Task Force and other parties by electronic mail when requested when there are 
proposed changes to the ordinance that involve things that will effect the building procedure. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent:  Howrylak  
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  
 
E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2004-11-591 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item E-2, which shall be considered after Consent Agenda (E) 
items, as printed. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent:  Howrylak  

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:   
 
Resolution #2004-11-591-E-3 
 
RESOLVED, That the following City of Troy Proclamations be APPROVED:   
a) America Recycles Day 2004 
b) Christian Heritage Week 
 
E-4  Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Acceptable Bidder – Ice 

Melt Compound 
 
Resolution #2004-11-591-E-4 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft November 15, 2004 
 

- 5 - 

RESOLVED, That a contract to provide one (1) year requirements of Ice Melt Compound with 
an option to renew for one (1) additional year for the City of Troy and participating MITN 
(Michigan Intergovernmental Trade Network) Purchasing Cooperative Members is hereby 
AWARDED to the lowest bidder meeting specifications, Washington Elevator Co., Inc. at the 
unit price contained in the bid tabulation opened October 20,2004, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with a contract expiration of October 31, 
2005.  
 
 
E-5  Request for Approval of Relocation Claim, Louis and Diana Thomas, 2863 Thames, 

Sidwell #88-20-25-226-007, Project No. 01.105.5 – Big Beaver Road Improvements, 
Rochester to Dequindre 

 
Resolution #2004-11-591-E-5  
 
RESOLVED, That as required by Michigan Laws and Federal Regulations, the City Council of 
the City of Troy hereby APPROVES the Relocation Claim from Louis and Diana Thomas 
pertaining to the City of Troy’s acquisition of their property at 2863 Thames, having Sidwell #88-
20-25-226-007, and AUTHORIZES payment in the amount of $6,129.19. 
 
 
E-6 Request for Approval of Relocation Claim, Virginia H. Newman, 2815 Thames, 

Sidwell #88-20-25-226-003, Project No. 01.105.5 – Big Beaver Road Improvements, 
Rochester to Dequindre 

 
Resolution #2004-11-591-E-6  
 
RESOLVED, That as required by Michigan Laws and Federal Regulations, the City Council of 
the City of Troy hereby APPROVES the Relocation Claim, for moving expenses, from Virginia 
H. Newman pertaining to the City of Troy’s acquisition of her property at 2815 Thames, having 
Sidwell #88-20-25-226-003, and AUTHORIZES payment in the amount of $3,241.50. 
 
 
E-7 Request for Approval of Relocation Claim, John Cionca, Sr., 2931 Thames, Sidwell 

#88-20-25-229-003, Project No. 01.105.5 – Big Beaver Road Improvements, 
Rochester to Dequindre 

 
Resolution #2004-11-591-E-7 
 
RESOLVED, That as required by Michigan Laws and Federal Regulations, the City Council of 
the City of Troy hereby APPROVES the Relocation Claim from John Cionca, Sr., pertaining to 
the City of Troy’s acquisition of their property at 2931 Thames, having Sidwell #88-20-25-229-
003, and AUTHORIZES payment in the amount of $4,720.60. 
 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft November 15, 2004 
 

- 6 - 

E-2  Minutes:  Regular Meeting of November 8, 2004 
 
Resolution #2004-11-592  
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular Meeting of November 8, 2004 be 
APPROVED as submitted. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent:  Howrylak  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees:  

City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
 
City Council Appointments 
 
Resolution #2004-11-593 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the following person is hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Committee as indicated: 
 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 years 
 
Cynthia Buchanan Term expires 11/01/2007 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent:  Howrylak  

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  
a) Request for Rezoning (Z-697) West Side of Crooks Road, North of Big Beaver Road – 

Section 20 – P-1 to O-1 and B-3– Scheduled for November 29, 2004 
b) Parking Variance Request – 1717 Stutz Drive – Scheduled for November 29, 2004 
c) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 3035 Heritage – Scheduled for November 29, 2004 

Noted and Filed  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft November 15, 2004 
 

- 7 - 

G-2 Green Memorandums:  No Green Items Submitted 
 
COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda: No Council Referrals Advanced 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: No Council Comments Advanced 
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – October 6, 2004 
b) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – October 6, 2004 
c) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – October 7, 2004  
d) Liquor Advisory Committee Minutes/Final – October 11, 2004 
e) Planning Commission Special-Study/Draft – October 26, 2004 
f) Troy Youth Council/Draft – October 27, 2004 
g) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – November 4, 2004  
h) Liquor Advisory Committee Minutes/Draft – November 8, 2004 

Noted and Filed  
 
J-2 Department Reports:  None Presented 
 
J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter from Robert J. O’Neill, Jr., Executive Director of ICMA to John Szerlag, Thanking 

Him for Participation in the 90th Annual Conference in San Diego 
b) Letter from David Gorcyca, Oakland County Prosecuting Attorney, to Chief Charles 

Craft, Congratulating the Troy Police Department on Winning First Place in the Class A 
Division of the 67th Michigan Police Shoot 

c) Letter from John Gladysz, Director of Price Funeral Home to Captain Edward Murphy, 
Thanking the Troy Police Department, Sergeant Cantlon, and Police Service Aides Mary 
Stark and Jeff Strong for Their Assistance During a Large Funeral Procession 

d) Letter from David Prince to the Troy Police Department, In Appreciation for a Police 
Station Tour 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:   
a) Notice of Hearing for the Electric Customers of the Detroit Edison Company Case No.  

U-14275 
Noted and Filed  

 
J-5  Calendar 

Noted and Filed  
 
J-6  I-75 Crooks / Long Lake Interchange Improvement – Information on Environmental 

Assessment 
Noted and Filed  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft November 15, 2004 
 

- 8 - 

 
J-7  Statue to be Added to the Peace Garden 

Noted and Filed  
 
J-8  Citation of Excellence – Troy Public Library 

Noted and Filed  
 
J-9  Council Member Lambert’s Report from the MML 2004 Annual Convention at 

Mackinac Island 
Noted and Filed  

 
J-10 Resolution from Oakland County Clerk – Register of Deeds – Board of 

Commissioners – Opposition to Efforts to Rush Revisions to Michigan’s Tax Code 
During Lame Duck Season 

Noted and Filed  
 
J-11  2004 3CMA Savvy Award – Community Visioning Process Entry 

Noted and Filed  
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #5 
 
Resolution #2004-11-594 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
RESOLVED, That City Council SUSPEND Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #15 - L 
Closed Session and AUTHORIZE City Council to discuss and take action on agenda item L-1 
prior to K-1. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent:  Howrylak  
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session 
 
Resolution #2004-11-596 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as 
permitted by MCL 15.268 (e); Story v. City of Troy – Pending Litigation. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent:  Howrylak  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft November 15, 2004 
 

- 9 - 

 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1  Alternative Sites for Minor League Baseball Facility  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 8:56 PM 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 9:20 PM. 
 
The meeting ADJOURNNED at 11:17 PM. 
 
 
 
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 

 
 
 

 Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



 
DATE: November 18, 2004 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
 Mark S. Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – ANNOUNCEMENT OF PUBLIC HEARING (DECEMBER 6, 

2004) – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215A) – Article 
04.20.00 and Articles 40.55.00-40.59.00, pertaining to Accessory Buildings 
Definitions and Provisions 

 
 
City Council adopted a resolution on October 4, 2004 which authorized the Planning 
Commission and City Management to address accessory structures and neighborhood 
compatibility within the R-1A through R-1E Zoning Districts, addressing size, use and 
compatibility.  City Council requested that the Planning Commission forward a 
recommendation to City Council in the fastest time period possible.  City Management 
developed an operational definition of compatibility as an issue related to size and use 
of accessory structures.  Therefore, compatibility of accessory structures has been 
addressed in a zoning ordinance text amendment through the traditional regulatory 
methods:  height, size, setbacks and use. 
 
City Management engaged Richard Carlisle, City Planning Consultant, to assist in 
preparing the zoning ordinance text amendments.  Mr. Carlisle prepared an initial draft that 
served as a working draft for City Management and the Planning Commission.  This item 
was discussed at the October 26, 2004 and November 2, 2004 Planning Commission 
Special/Study Meetings.  City Management recommended dividing ZOTA 215 into three 
separate items to be considered separately but concurrently.  These items are Accessory 
Buildings Definitions and Provisions (ZOTA 215A), Commercial Vehicle Definitions (ZOTA 
215B), and Commercial Vehicle Parking Appeals (ZOTA 215C).  The Planning 
Commission held a Public Hearing on the three separate items on November 9, 2004, and 
recommended approval of ZOTA 215A (Accessory Buildings Definitions and Provisions).  
Furthermore, the Planning Commission tabled ZOTA 215B and ZOTA 215C to provide 
additional time for further review.  
 
City Management and the Planning Commission have made every attempt to consider this 
item as quickly as possible, as requested by City Council.  The proposed text is in a 
working draft format and has not been put in an ordinance format.  City Management has 
not had sufficient time to conduct a complete review of the draft text amendment.  A copy 
of the draft text has been forwarded to the City Attorney for review and comment.  We 
expect correspondence from the City Attorney prior to the December 6, 2004 Public 
Hearing. 

bittnera
Text Box
G-1a



A copy of the modified draft was provided to Mr. Carlisle for review and comment.  We 
expect correspondence from Mr. Carlisle prior to the December 6, 2004 Public Hearing. 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Minutes from October 4, 2004 City Council meeting. 
2. ZOTA 215A provisions showing all proposed markups. 
3. ZOTA 215A provisions in final draft form, with no markups. 
4. Minutes from October 26, 2004 Planning Commission Special/Study Meeting. 
5. Minutes from November 2, 2004 Planning Commission Special/Study Meeting. 
6. Minutes from November 9, 2004 Planning Commission Regular Meeting. 
 
 
cc: File/ZOTA 215A 
 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 215 Accessory Structures in R-1\ZOTA 215A Nov 17 2004 PC.doc 
 
Prepared by RBS 





Date:  October 21, 2004 
Rev:  November 17, 2004 

 
 

 1

[Revise Section 04.20.00 DEFINITIONS as follows]: 
 
04.20.01 ACCESSORY BUILDING:  A subordinate building, or portion thereof, 
the use of which is clearly incidental to that of supplemental or subordinate to the main 
building or to the use of the land and is devoted exclusively to an accessory use.  The 
various types of accessory buildings shall be further defined as follows: 
 

A. BARN:  A building specifically or partially used for the storage of farm 
animals such as, but not limited to, horses, cattle, sheep, goats, and fowl, other 
than a dog house. 

 
B. GARAGE:  A building, or portion of the main building, of not less than one 

hundred eighty (180) square feet designed and intended to be used for the 
periodic parking or storage of one or more private motor vehicles, yard 
maintenance equipment or recreational vehicles such as, but not limited to, 
boats, trailers, all terrain vehicles and snowmobiles. 

 
C. STORAGE BUILDING/SHED:  A building designed and intended to be used 

for the storage of tools, garden tractors, lawn mowers, motorcycles, small 
recreation vehicles such as, but not limited to, snowmobiles, ATV’s, and 
motor scooters,  

 
04.20.02 ACCESSORY SUPPLEMENTAL BUILDING.  An accessory building 
used by the occupants of the principal building for recreation or pleasure, such as a 
gazebo, swimming pool cabana, building housing a spa, or greenhouse.  The various 
types of accessory supplemental buildings shall be further defined as follows: 
 

A. CABANA:  A building used in conjunction with a swimming pool and used 
for no other purpose than the housing of pool filter equipment, pool 
accessories such as, but not limited to, vacuum cleaning equipment, brooms 
and safety equipment, and/or changing of clothes.  

 
B. DOG HOUSE:  A building designed and used for housing not more than three 

dogs, cats or other similar animals owned by the occupant of the parcel on 
which located. 

 
C. GAZEBO:  A detached, roofed or sheltered structure, which is generally of 

open, screened, or lattice-work construction, and may be used for outdoor 
seating.   

 
D. GREENHOUSE:  A detached, building constructed of permanent or 

temporary framing that is set directly on the ground and is covered with glass 
panels or plastic or other transparent material, and is used to grow plants  



Date:  October 21, 2004 
Rev:  November 17, 2004 

 
 

 2

E. PLAY HOUSE:  A detached building designed and used for children’s play. 
 

40.20.02 ACCESSORY STRUCTURE:  A structure, or portion thereof, which is 
supplemental or subordinate to the main building or to the use of the land. 
 
04.20.03 ACCESSORY USE:  is a  A use which is supplemental and subordinate to 
the main use on a lot and is used for purposes clearly incidental to those of the main use. 
 
04.20.10 ANTENNAS:  Structures or facilities for the reception or transmission of 
radio, television, and microwave signals. 
 
4.20.65  GARAGE, PRIVATE: an accessory building for parking or storage of not 

more than the number of vehicles as may be required in connection with the 
permitted use of the principal structure. 

 
4.20.67  GARAGE, PUBLIC: any garage other than a private garage available to the 

public, operated for gain, and used for storage, repair, rental, greasing, 
washing, sales, servicing, adjusting or equipping of automobiles or other 
motor vehicles. 

 



Date:  October 21, 2004 
Rev:  November 17, 2004 

 
 

 3

 
[Revise Section 40.55.00 – 40.59.00 as follows]: 
 
40.55.00 ACCESSORY BUILDINGS, ACCESSORY SUPPLEMENTAL 
BUILDINGS AND ACCESSORY STRUCTURES 

Accessory buildings, accessory supplemental buildings and 
accessory structures shall be subject to this Section and the applicable 
requirements of Sections 40.56.00 through 40.58.00. 

 
40.55.02 01 A. Accessory buildings and structures, By their definition and nature, 

they shall be secondary and clearly incidentalsupplemental or 
subordinate to the principal building on a parcel of land. Such buildings 
or structures  

 
 B.  Shall therefore not be permitted as the only building or structure be on a 

the same parcel of land, as the principal building they serve. 
 
 
40.55.03 C. Their construction, erection, installation or placement shall be in 

accordance with the requirements of the Building Code and the Electrical 
Code. Permits shall be required for buildings greater than thirty-six (36) 
square feet in area and/or greater than four (4) feet in height. Permits shall 
be required for all ground-mounted antennas, and for roof-mounted 
antennas greater than four (4) feet in height. Electrical service for ground-
mounted antennas shall be provided only through underground lines. 

 
40.55.04 D. Detached buildings and structures may be prefabricated or built on the 

site, and shall have ratwalls or other acceptable foundations not less than 
twenty four (24) inches in depth, or be built so that the floor and walls are 
located a minimum of six (6) inches above the underlying ground. Trailer-
mounted buildings and structures are prohibited. (Rev. 04-23-01) 

 
  E. Shall not be located within a dedicated easement or right-of-way. 
 
40.56.00 The various types of accessory buildings and structures shall be defined as 
follows: 
 

ANTENNAS: Structures or facilities for the reception or transmission of 
radio, television, and microwave signals. 

 
BARNS: A building specifically or partially used for the storage of farm 
animals such as, but not limited to, horses, cattle, sheep, goats and fowl, 
other than a dog house, so called. 



Date:  October 21, 2004 
Rev:  November 17, 2004 

 
 

 4

 
CABANAS: A building of not more than one-hundred (100) square feet 
used in conjunction with a swimming pool and used for no other 
purpose than the housing of pool filter equipment, pool accessories 
such as, but not limited to, vacuum cleaning equipment, brooms and 
safety equipment, and/or changing of clothes. (Rev. 04-23-01) 

 
DOG HOUSES: A building of not more than thirty-six (36) square feet 
with a total height of not more than four feet, designed and used for 
housing not more than three dogs, cats or other similar animals owned 
by the occupant of the parcel on which located. (Rev. 04-2301) 

 
GARAGES: A building of not less than one hundred eighty (180) square 
feet designed and intended to be used for the periodic parking or 
storage of one or more private motor vehicles, yard maintenance 
equipment or recreational vehicles such as, but not limited to, boats, 
trailers, all-terrain vehicles and snowmobiles. (Rev. 04-23-01) 

 
GAZEBO: A roofed or sheltered structure, not more than one hundred 
seventy nine (179) square feet in area, which is generally of open, 
screened, or lattice-work construction, and may be used for outdoor 
seating. (Rev. 04-23-01) 

GREEN HOUSES: A building constructed of permanent or temporary 
framing that is set directly on the ground and is covered with glass panels 
or plastic or other transparent material, and is used to grow plants from 
seed. 

 
SHEDS: A building of not more than one hundred seventy nine (179) 
square feet designed and intended to be used for the storage of tools, 
garden tractors, lawn mowers, motorcycles, small recreation vehicles such 
as, but not limited to, snowmobiles, ATV's, motor scooters, or used as doll 
houses, play houses or children's club houses. (Rev. 04-2301) 
 

40.56.00 ACCESSORY BUILDINGS IN R-1A THROUGH R-1E, R-2 and CR-1 
ZONING DISTRICTS 

 
40.57.01 Detached accessory buildings and structures may be prefabricated or built 

on the site, and shall have ratwalls or other acceptable foundations not less 
than twenty four (24) inches in depth, or be built so that the floor and 
walls are located a minimum of six (6) inches above the underlying 
ground. Trailer-mounted accessory buildings and structures are prohibited. 
(Rev. 04-23-01) 



Date:  October 21, 2004 
Rev:  November 17, 2004 

 
 

 5

40.56.01 Attached Accessory Buildings 
 
40.57.02  A. Where the accessory building or structure is structurally attached to a 

main building, it shall be subject to, and must conform to, all regulations 
of this chapter applicable to a main building in addition to the 
requirements of this Section. 
 
B. The area of attached accessory buildings shall not exceed one-half (1/2) 
of the ground floor footprint of the living area of the dwelling or six 
hundred (600) square feet whichever is greater.   
 
C. The size of any door to an attached accessory building shall not exceed 
eight (8) feet in height. 

 
40.56.02 Detached Accessory Buildings 
 

A. There shall be no more than two detached accessory buildings per lot or 
parcel, excluding accessory supplemental buildings as set forth in 
Section 40.56.03. 

 
40.57.03  B  Detached accessory buildings shall not be erected in any yard, except a 

rear yard. 
 
40.57.04  C. Detached accessory buildings and detached accessory supplemental 

buildings shall occupy not more than twenty-five (25) percent of a 
required rear yard. In no instance shall  

 
 D. The combined ground floor area of all detached accessory buildings 

and detached accessory supplemental buildings six hundred (600) square 
feet or one-half of the ground floor area of the main building, whichever is 
greater. (Rev. 04-23-01) shall not exceed four hundred-fifty (450) square 
feet plus two (2) percent of the total lot area.  However, in no instance 
shall the combined floor area of all detached accessory buildings and 
detached accessory supplemental buildings exceed the ground floor 
footprint of the living area of the dwelling or six hundred (600) square feet 
whichever is greater. 

 
40.57.05  E. No detached accessory building or structure except antennas, dog 

houses or cabanas shall be located closer than ten (10) feet to any main 
building, nor shall any accessory building or structure be located closer 
than six (6) feet to any side or rear lot line. In those instances where the 
rear lot line is coterminous with an alley right- of-way, the accessory 
building or structure shall not be closer than six (6) feet to such rear lot 



Date:  October 21, 2004 
Rev:  November 17, 2004 

 
 

 6

line. In no instance shall an accessory building or structure be located 
within a dedicated easement or right- of-way. (Rev. 01-05-04) 

 
40.57.06 F. No A detached accessory building or structure, in any Residential, C-F, 

B-1, and P-1 District shall not exceed one (1) story or fourteen (14) feet in 
height. Amateur radio antennas are permitted up to a height of 75 feet if 
used in accordance with the terms of a valid Amateur Radio Service 
License issued by the Federal Communications Commission or permitted 
under Federal Regulation by a reciprocal agreement with a foreign 
country. Other pole, mast type antennas may, however, be permitted to be 
constructed to a height equal to the permitted maximum height of 
structures in these Districts. Other pole, mast, whip, or panel type 
antennas which are roof-mounted or attached to a building shall not 
extend more than twelve (12) feet above the highest point of a roof. 
Satellite dish antennas in Residential Districts, which extend more than 
fourteen (14) feet in height or fourteen (14) feet above grade, shall not 
exceed twenty four (24) inches in diameter. Satellite dish and amateur 
radio antennas shall be placed so that rotation can occur without 
encroachment into the required setback. (Rev. 01-05-04)   

 
H.When an accessory building is located on a corner lot, the side lot line 
of which is substantially a continuation of the front lot line of the lot or 
parcel to its rear, said building or structure shall not project beyond the 
front setback line required on the lot or parcel to the rear of such corner 
lot. When an accessory building or structure is located on a corner lot, the 
side lot line of which is substantially a continuation of the side lot line of 
the lot to its rear, said building shall not project beyond the side yard line 
of the lot or parcel to the rear of such corner lot. 

 
 G. The size of any door to a detached accessory building shall not exceed 

eight (8) feet in height. 
 
 H. An accessory building defined as a barn or a greenhouse shall be 

subject to the approval of the Zoning Board of Appeals. 
 
40.57.07 Accessory buildings and structures in all Districts not specified in Section 

40.57.06 may be constructed to one (1) story or fourteen (14) feet in 
height or may, subject to Board of Appeals review and approval, be 
constructed equal to the permitted maximum height of the structures in 
said Districts. Exception: Roof-mounted antennas, not extending more 
than twelve (12) feet above the highest point of a roof, are not subject to 
Board of Appeals review. (Rev. 04-23-01) 



Date:  October 21, 2004 
Rev:  November 17, 2004 

 
 

 7

40.56.03 Accessory Supplemental Buildings 
 

A. No more than three (3) detached accessory supplemental buildings 
shall be permitted. 

 
B. The total floor area of all detached accessory supplemental 

buildings shall not exceed two hundred (200) square feet. 
 
C. An accessory supplemental building shall not be located in any 

required yard other than a rear front yard. 
 
D. No detached accessory supplemental building shall be located 

closer than six (6) feet to any side or rear lot line. 
 
E. A detached accessory supplemental building shall not exceed one 

(1) story or fourteen (14) feet in height. 
 
F. The size of any door to an accessory supplemental building shall 

not exceed eight (8) feet in height. 
 

40.57.00 ACCESSORY BUILDINGS IN OTHER ZONING DISTRICTS 
 

A. All accessory buildings shall be subject to the same placement and 
height requirements applicable to principal structures in the district 
in which located. 

 
 
40.58.00 ACCESSORY STRUCTURES 
 

A. Amateur radio antennas are permitted up to a height of 75 feet if 
used in accordance with the terms of a valid Amateur Radio 
Service License issued by the Federal Communications 
Commission or permitted under Federal Regulation by a reciprocal 
agreement with a foreign country. Other pole, mast type antennas 
may, however, be permitted to be constructed to a height equal to 
the permitted maximum height of structures in these Districts. 
Other pole, mast, whip, or panel type antennas which are roof-
mounted or attached to a building shall not extend more than 
twelve (12) feet above the highest point of a roof. Satellite dish 
antennas in Residential Districts, which extend more than fourteen 
(14) feet in height or fourteen (14) feet above grade, shall not 
exceed twenty four (24) inches in diameter. Satellite dish and 
amateur radio antennas shall be placed so that rotation can occur 
without encroachment into the required setback. 



Date:  October 21, 2004 
Rev:  November 17, 2004 

 
 

 8

 
40.57.08  B. No more than two (2) antenna structures (no more than one of which 

may be ground-mounted, and thus detached from the main building) shall 
be permitted for each lot or parcel, with the following exception: 

 
A.1. On non-residential parcels, two (2) antenna structures shall be 

permitted for the first twenty thousand (20,000) square feet of 
gross building area, with one antenna structure permitted for each 
additional twenty thousand (20,000) square feet of gross building 
area, or major portion thereof. 

 
B 2. The numerical limits of this Section shall not apply in the 

following situations: 
 

1.a. Panel-type antennas which are visually integrated with the 
building surface on which they are mounted (similar 
color, not extending above wall, equipment penthouse or 
enclosure surface). 

 
2.b. Pole, mast, whip, or panel-type antennas mounted on or 

adjacent to the roof of residential or non-residential 
buildings sixty (60) feet or more in height. 

 
40.57.09  When an accessory building or structure is located on a corner lot, the side 

lot line of which is substantially a continuation of the front lot line of the 
lot or parcel to its rear, said building or structure shall not project beyond 
the front setback line required on the lot or parcel to the rear of such 
corner lot. When an accessory building or structure is located on a corner 
lot, the side lot line of which is substantially a continuation of the side lot 
line of the lot to its rear, said building shall not project beyond the side 
yard line of the lot or parcel to the rear of such corner lot. 

 
40.57.10  When an accessory building or structure in any Residence, Business or 

Office District is defined as other than an antenna, cabana, dog house, 
garage or shed, construction or placement of the accessory building or 
structure shall be subject to the approval of the Board of Zoning Appeals. 
Examples of those structures requiring Board of Zoning Appeals approval 
would thus include, but not be limited to, Barns, Greenhouses, and free-
standing Gazebos. Gazebos constructed as a part of attached open patios 
or deck structures in a rear yard shall be regulated in accordance with 
Section 41.45.00 of this Chapter, and shall not require Board of Zoning 
Appeals approval. 



Date:  October 21, 2004 
Rev:  November 17, 2004 

 
 

 9

 
40.57.11 NEIGHBORS NOTIFICATION: 

Applications for permits for the placement or construction of sheds located 
in platted subdivisions or on acreage parcels of less than two (2) acres 
shall be submitted with evidence of notification of placement or 
construction, to the owners of record of fifty percent (50%) of the 
developed lots or parcels which are immediately abutting the parcel on 
which the subject building or structure is to be placed. On acreage parcels 
of two (2) acres or more, evidence of notification shall be provided in 
relation to all owners of record of developed land within one hundred 
(100) feet of the subject building or structure. Evidence of notification 
shall consist of either certified mail receipts, or a signed affidavit, from the 
required number of property owners. 

 
40.57.12 

The construction, erection, installation or placement of accessory 
buildings or structures shall be in accordance with the requirements of the 
Building Code and the Electrical Code. Building Permits shall be required 
for accessory buildings greater than thirty-six (36) square feet in area 
and/or greater than four (4) feet in height. Building permits shall be 
required for all ground-mounted antennas, and for roof-mounted antennas 
greater than four (4) feet in height. Electrical service for ground-mounted 
antennas shall be provided only through underground lines. 

 
A. Recreation uses. 

 
B. Porch, patio, terrace, or entranceway areas. 

 
In no instance shall the area encompassed, together with main and 
accessory buildings, exceed the lot area coverage provisions indicated in 
Section 30.10.00 "Schedule of Regulations-Residential". Such covering or 
enclosure must also comply with the main building setback requirements 
included in Section 30.10.00. Porch, patio, terrace or entranceway covers 
may be permitted to encroach into such yards in accordance with Section 
41.50.00. Recreation facilities involving temporary covers, on sites in 
excess of one acre in area, shall conform to the requirements of Section 
10.30.06, Sub-Sections (C) and (D). 
 

G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 215 Accessory Structures in R-1\Accessory Buildings 11-17-04 revision.doc 



Date:  October 21, 2004 
Rev:  November 17, 2004 

 
 

 1

[Revise Section 04.20.00 DEFINITIONS as follows]: 
 
04.20.01 ACCESSORY BUILDING:  A building, or portion thereof, which is 
supplemental or subordinate to the main building or to the use of the land and is devoted 
exclusively to an accessory use.  The various types of accessory buildings shall be further 
defined as follows: 
 

A. BARN:  A building specifically or partially used for the storage of farm 
animals such as, but not limited to, horses, cattle, sheep, goats, and fowl, other 
than a dog house. 

 
B. GARAGE:  A building, or portion of the main building, of not less than one 

hundred eighty (180) square feet designed and intended to be used for the 
periodic parking or storage of one or more private motor vehicles, yard 
maintenance equipment or recreational vehicles such as, but not limited to, 
boats, trailers, all terrain vehicles and snowmobiles. 

 
C. STORAGE BUILDING/SHED:  A building designed and intended to be used 

for the storage of tools, garden tractors, lawn mowers, motorcycles, small 
recreation vehicles such as, but not limited to, snowmobiles, ATV’s, and 
motor scooters,  

 
04.20.02 ACCESSORY SUPPLEMENTAL BUILDING.  An accessory building 
used by the occupants of the principal building for recreation or pleasure, such as a 
gazebo, swimming pool cabana, building housing a spa, or greenhouse.  The various 
types of accessory supplemental buildings shall be further defined as follows: 
 

A. CABANA:  A building used in conjunction with a swimming pool and used 
for no other purpose than the housing of pool filter equipment, pool 
accessories such as, but not limited to, vacuum cleaning equipment, brooms 
and safety equipment, and/or changing of clothes.  

 
B. DOG HOUSE:  A building designed and used for housing not more than three 

dogs, cats or other similar animals owned by the occupant of the parcel on 
which located. 

 
C. GAZEBO:  A detached, roofed or sheltered structure, which is generally of 

open, screened, or lattice-work construction, and may be used for outdoor 
seating.   

 
D. GREENHOUSE:  A detached, building constructed of permanent or 

temporary framing that is set directly on the ground and is covered with glass 
panels or plastic or other transparent material, and is used to grow plants. 



Date:  October 21, 2004 
Rev:  November 17, 2004 

 
 

 2

E. PLAY HOUSE:  A detached building designed and used for children’s play. 
 

04.20.02 ACCESSORY STRUCTURE:  A structure, or portion thereof, which is 
supplemental or subordinate to the main building or to the use of the land. 
 
04.20.03 ACCESSORY USE: A use which is supplemental and subordinate to the 
main use and is used for purposes clearly incidental to those of the main use. 
 
04.20.10 ANTENNAS:  Structures or facilities for the reception or transmission of 
radio, television, and microwave signals. 



Date:  October 21, 2004 
Rev:  November 17, 2004 

 
 

 3

[Revise Section 40.55.00 – 40.59.00 as follows]: 
 
40.55.00 ACCESSORY BUILDINGS, ACCESSORY SUPPLEMENTAL 
BUILDINGS AND ACCESSORY STRUCTURES 

Accessory buildings, accessory supplemental buildings and 
accessory structures shall be subject to this Section and the applicable 
requirements of Sections 40.56.00 through 40.58.00. 

 
 A. By their definition and nature, they shall be supplemental or 

subordinate to the principal building on a parcel of land.  
 
 B.  Shall be on a the same parcel of land, as the principal building they serve. 
 
 C. Their construction, erection, installation or placement shall be in 

accordance with the requirements of the Building Code and the Electrical 
Code. Permits shall be required for buildings greater than thirty-six (36) 
square feet in area and/or greater than four (4) feet in height. Permits shall 
be required for all ground-mounted antennas, and for roof-mounted 
antennas greater than four (4) feet in height. Electrical service for ground-
mounted antennas shall be provided only through underground lines. 

 
 D. Detached buildings and structures may be prefabricated or built on the 

site, and shall have ratwalls or other acceptable foundations not less than 
twenty four (24) inches in depth, or be built so that the floor and walls are 
located a minimum of six (6) inches above the underlying ground. Trailer-
mounted buildings and structures are prohibited. 

 
  E. Shall not be located within a dedicated easement or right-of-way. 
 
40.56.00 ACCESSORY BUILDINGS IN R-1A THROUGH R-1E, R-2 and CR-1 

ZONING DISTRICTS 
 
 
40.56.01 Attached Accessory Buildings 
 
 A. Where the accessory building or structure is structurally attached to a 

main building, it shall be subject to, and must conform to, all regulations 
of this chapter applicable to a main building in addition to the 
requirements of this Section. 
 
B. The area of attached accessory buildings shall not exceed one-half (1/2) 
of the ground floor footprint of the living area of the dwelling or six 
hundred (600) square feet whichever is greater.   



Date:  October 21, 2004 
Rev:  November 17, 2004 

 
 

 4

 
C. The size of any door to an attached accessory building shall not exceed 
eight (8) feet in height. 

 
40.56.02 Detached Accessory Buildings 
 

A. There shall be no more than two detached accessory buildings per lot or 
parcel, excluding accessory supplemental buildings as set forth in Section 
40.56.03. 
 

 B  Detached accessory buildings shall not be erected in any yard, except a 
rear yard. 

 
 C. Detached accessory buildings and detached accessory supplemental 

buildings shall occupy not more than twenty-five (25) percent of a 
required rear yard.  

 
 D. The combined ground floor area of all detached accessory buildings 

and detached accessory supplemental buildings shall not exceed four 
hundred-fifty (450) square feet plus two (2) percent of the total lot area.  
However, in no instance shall the combined floor area of all detached 
accessory buildings and detached accessory supplemental buildings 
exceed the ground floor footprint of the living area of the dwelling or six 
hundred (600) square feet whichever is greater. 

 
 E. No detached accessory building shall be located closer than ten (10) 

feet to any main building, nor closer than six (6) feet to any side or rear lot 
line.  

 
F. A detached accessory building shall not exceed one (1) story or 
fourteen (14) feet in height.  

 
 G. The size of any door to a detached accessory building shall not exceed 

eight (8) feet in height. 
 

H. An accessory building defined as a barn or a greenhouse shall be 
subject to the approval of the Zoning Board of Appeals. 



Date:  October 21, 2004 
Rev:  November 17, 2004 

 
 

 5

40.56.03 Accessory Supplemental Buildings 
 

A. No more than three (3) detached accessory supplemental buildings 
shall be permitted. 

 
B. The total floor area of all detached accessory supplemental 

buildings shall not exceed two hundred (200) square feet. 
 
C. An accessory supplemental building shall not be located in any 

front yard. 
 
D. No detached accessory supplemental building shall be located 

closer than six (6) feet to any side or rear lot line. 
 
E. A detached accessory supplemental building shall not exceed one 

(1) story or fourteen (14) feet in height. 
 
F. The size of any door to an accessory supplemental building shall 

not exceed eight (8) feet in height. 
 

40.57.00 ACCESSORY BUILDINGS IN OTHER ZONING DISTRICTS 
 
All accessory buildings shall be subject to the same placement and height 
requirements applicable to principal structures in the district in which 
located. 
 

 
40.58.00 ACCESSORY STRUCTURES 
 

A. Amateur radio antennas are permitted up to a height of 75 feet if 
used in accordance with the terms of a valid Amateur Radio 
Service License issued by the Federal Communications 
Commission or permitted under Federal Regulation by a reciprocal 
agreement with a foreign country. Other pole, mast type antennas 
may, however, be permitted to be constructed to a height equal to 
the permitted maximum height of structures in these Districts. 
Other pole, mast, whip, or panel type antennas which are roof-
mounted or attached to a building shall not extend more than 
twelve (12) feet above the highest point of a roof. Satellite dish 
antennas in Residential Districts, which extend more than fourteen 
(14) feet in height or fourteen (14) feet above grade, shall not 
exceed twenty four (24) inches in diameter. Satellite dish and 
amateur radio antennas shall be placed so that rotation can occur 
without encroachment into the required setback. 



Date:  October 21, 2004 
Rev:  November 17, 2004 

 
 

 6

 
 
 B. No more than two (2) antenna structures (no more than one of which 

may be ground-mounted, and thus detached from the main building) shall 
be permitted for each lot or parcel, with the following exception: 

 
1. On non-residential parcels, two (2) antenna structures shall be 

permitted for the first twenty thousand (20,000) square feet of 
gross building area, with one antenna structure permitted for each 
additional twenty thousand (20,000) square feet of gross building 
area, or major portion thereof. 

 
2. The numerical limits of this Section shall not apply in the 

following situations: 
 

a. Panel-type antennas which are visually integrated with the 
building surface on which they are mounted (similar 
color, not extending above wall, equipment penthouse or 
enclosure surface). 

 
b. Pole, mast, whip, or panel-type antennas mounted on or 

adjacent to the roof of residential or non-residential 
buildings sixty (60) feet or more in height. 

 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 215 Accessory Structures in R-1\Accessory Buildings 11-17-04 revision finished.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 26, 2004 
 

7. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215) – Articles 04.20.00, 
10.00.00, 30.00.00, 31.00.00, and 40.00.00 Accessory Structures and 
Neighborhood Compatibility 
 
Mr. Miller introduced the City representatives who were present for discussion of 
the matter and informed those present of the presentation format that would be 
followed. 
 
Mr. Szerlag announced that the situation on Alpine resulted from a resident finding 
a loophole in the Zoning Ordinance that would allow a monster garage to be built.  
City Council’s concern resulted in a study session with City staff and the Planning 
Consultant.  The recommendation of City Council was to have the Planning 
Commission find a way to plug the loopholes that currently exist in the ordinance 
and amend the ordinance to allow for better compatibility on attached and detached 
accessory structures.  Mr. Szerlag said regulation of size, use and compatibility was 
discussed at the study session, and that compatibility was defined as the 
conditional element of size, use, height, and setbacks, but not materials.  On behalf 
of City Council, Mr. Szerlag stressed the urgency to find a solution that would plug 
the loopholes in the ordinance and stop future construction of monster garages or 
accessory structures.  He explained that City staff is continuing its negotiations with 
the Alpine property owner to resolve the matter of that particular monster garage. 
 
Mr. Miller provided a slide presentation.  The presentation displayed 14 homes in 
the City that have existing garages with more square footage than the actual 
homes.   
 
[Mr. Strat arrived at 7:48 p.m.] 
 
Mr. Stimac said the garages displayed in the slide presentation are all attached 
garages, but acknowledged there are homes in the City with detached garages that 
exceed the ground floor area of the living space of the home.  Mr. Stimac reviewed 
various changes that were made in the Zoning Ordinance, and cited examples of 
related accessory structures.  He reported that cases before the Board of Zoning 
Appeals requesting to construct detached garages of significant size have been 
based on the City requirement to store commercial vehicles.  Mr. Stimac said that, 
in part, the construction of large garages is the result of residents complying with 
the ordinance that requires residents to store their commercial vehicles indoors. 
 
Mr. Chamberlain asked the number of parcels with attached and detached large 
garages that were constructed in compliance with the Zoning Ordinance 
requirement to store commercial vehicles.   
 
Mr. Stimac estimated 30 parcels, but noted that a study has not been done.  Mr. 
Stimac said the parameter of the 14 garages displayed in the slide presentation 
was that the square footage of the garage exceeds the square footage of the 
house, and that detached garages were not covered in the slide presentation.  Mr. 
Stimac said it is his opinion that many of the large garages in the City, both 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 26, 2004 
 

attached and detached, have been generated in part by the desire to house 
commercial vehicles.   
 
Mr. Strat asked how many of the garages have been built in the last 5 to 10 years. 
 
Mr. Stimac responded that approximately 20 out of the estimated 30 garages were 
built within the last 8 to 10 years.   
 
Mr. Carlisle distributed two informational items: (1) proposed definitions and 
ordinance language changes relating to outdoor parking and commercial vehicles 
in residential districts and a revised definition of a commercial vehicle; and (2) Truck 
Driver’s Guidebook.  Mr. Carlisle provided the material as a preface to his opinion 
that the current regulations relating to parking of commercial vehicles have in part 
led to the concern of monster accessory structures.  He said, to some degree, the 
construction of extremely large buildings has resulted from the regulations placed 
on parking of commercial vehicles in residential areas.  Mr. Carlisle would ultimately 
like to see parking of commercial vehicles restricted in residential districts.  Mr. 
Carlisle said that if commercial parking is not addressed, the City is in essence 
doing only half the job as it addresses monster accessory structures.   
 
Mr. Carlisle highlighted his observations of the current Zoning Ordinance and 
reviewed his recommended revisions to the ordinance that were provided in his 
October 21, 2004 memorandum.  Mr. Carlisle suggested that material compatibility 
be addressed in the future.   
 
Specific items discussed were: 

• Definition of “incidental” 
• Material compatibility 
• Garage door height and size / definition of measurement 
• Size limitation on greenhouse 
• “Barn” designation in the ordinance 
• Ground floor living area 
• Definition of play structures; recreational structures 
• User-friendly Zoning Ordinance (readability, indexing, etc.) 
• Appeal process 
• City Council’s aspect 

 
Mr. Strat referenced his “revised” e-mail that was inadvertently not distributed to the 
Commission members prior to tonight’s meeting.  Mr. Strat said he is not in favor of 
a percentage of lot size as a consideration in the size of an accessory building; i.e., 
narrow lots.  He said the size of a garage door should be limited.  Mr. Strat 
suggested that an appeal process be in place to grant exceptions, and that 
consideration be given to Special Land Use approval that would require a Public 
Hearing.  He suggested that building elevations and identification of materials be 
requirements of the review process.  Mr. Strat said it is very difficult to legislate and 
enforce material compatibility. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 26, 2004 
 

Mr. Schultz said enforcement of the current Zoning Ordinance with respect to 
commercial vehicles is most important.  He agrees that the garage door height 
should be limited.  Mr. Schultz said the material used for an accessory structure is a 
matter of preference and should not be dictated by the City.  Mr. Schultz said he 
would be in favor of limiting an attached accessory structure to 750 square feet, or 
¾ of the ground floor living area of the house. 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts would like the ordinance to address material compatibility.  She 
questioned if the suggested limitations on the garage door would be enough.   
 
Mr. Littman questioned (1) the clarity of the phrase “clearly incidental” in Section 
04.20.01, (2) no size limitation on greenhouses, and (3) the meaning of ground floor 
living area. 
 
There was a brief discussion whether the ordinance should provide definitions of 
specific structures that are related to recreational hobbies; i.e., playhouses.   
 
Mr. Stimac stated that play structures need to be specifically defined in the 
ordinance.   
 
Mr. Carlisle said there was discussion at the City Council level that residents should 
not be penalized from being able to have recreational types of structures.  Those 
types of structures are not used for storage, are not typically large in size and have 
a specific purpose as well as design. 
 
Chair Waller suggested the ordinance reflect some sort of indexing and referencing 
for a user-friendly ordinance. 
 
Mr. Chamberlain said the text in the Special Use ordinance has been reorganized 
and has not moved forward.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain said the main issue to solve is the problem of monster commercial 
garages.  He said the slide presentation tonight showed some garages that were 
compatible with the home and the land.  He said the heart of the whole issue and 
where the process should begin is with the definition of commercial vehicles.  Mr. 
Chamberlain said staff is asking for direction in the next two weeks, prior to the 
Public Hearing.  Mr. Chamberlain said the door height is important and it is 
necessary to make sure that the garage door disappears into the ceiling.  Mr. 
Chamberlain said that Special Land Use approval would not work.  He said it would 
become a crapshoot for anyone who wants to construct an accessory building 
because they would not know whether the City would approve it.  Mr. Chamberlain 
said the ordinance must be written with the appropriate text and size limitations, 
and appeals to any restrictions would go before the BZA for review and approval.  
Mr. Chamberlain said the City should not get involved in building material 
compatibility because the building appearance is in the eyes of the beholder and 
this is not a Communist country.  Mr. Chamberlain said the concern with narrow lot 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 26, 2004 
 

size is not an issue, and noted that setbacks within the ordinance would resolve 
that concern.  Mr. Chamberlain said he agrees with the recommendations of Mr. 
Carlisle except that the garage door height should be addressed, and his 
preference would be that it be over 8 feet.   
 
Mr. Wright said he likes the commercial vehicle definition created by Mr. Carlisle.  
He noted the definition was an item with which the Commission struggled in the late 
1980’s and early 1990’s. 
 
Mr. Strat commended Mr. Carlisle’s recommendations.  He stated the garage door 
would not dictate the height of the door as far as internal clearance.  Mr. Strat again 
stressed that the matter should be considered by Special Land Use approval and 
that the BZA is not the appropriate appeal process.   
 
Mr. Stimac asked that there be a height limitation indicated for supplemental 
buildings.  Mr. Stimac noted that it would not be difficult for a resident to prove a 
hardship to the Board of Zoning Appeals with respect to the garage door height 
limitation.   
 
Mr. Stimac acknowledged that stacked condominiums should be addressed, where 
the first floor of the building is primarily a garage.  He said consideration should be 
given to the definition of building versus multiple buildings and how the formula 
would apply to non single-family residential detached structures, such as carports.   
 
Mr. Szerlag suggested a tiered approach in addressing (1) monster accessory 
buildings, (2) commercial vehicles, and (3) material compatibility.  He stressed the 
immediate need to address the size of accessory structures and to enable the 
Building Department to not issue building permits for monster garages.   
 
Mr. Miller confirmed that the exact proposed ordinance text amendment does not 
have to be published prior to the Public Hearing.  It is required to publish only a 
summary of the ordinance sections in which proposed revisions are being 
considered.  Mr. Miller reminded the Commission that the matter could be 
discussed further at the next study session.     
 
Council Member Robin Beltramini was present.  Ms. Beltramini commended Mr. 
Carlisle for a good job in summarizing the will of the City Council.  She said she 
appreciates the tiered approach suggested by Mr. Szerlag.  Ms. Beltramini said she 
surmised by tonight’s comments and her good notes that at least half of the 
members believe the concern of monster accessory structures is driven by the 
commercial vehicle issue, and that she agrees.  She said she heard a fair amount 
of consensus from the members with respect to the ordinance provisions.  Ms. 
Beltramini said she would prefer that the members brainstorm on the heart of the 
matter, and address the material compatibility at a later date.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 26, 2004 
 

Council Member Jeanne Stine was present.  Ms. Stine said the crux of the matter is 
dependent on the need to hide commercial vehicles, and she was very pleased that 
Mr. Carlisle addressed that aspect with the City Council.  She asked for clarification 
on the definition of “incidental”, as cited in Section 40.55.01.   
 
Mr. Carlisle said “incidental” is defined as secondary; not primary.   
 
Ms. Stine asked if that would deal with size also.   
 
Mr. Carlisle said that is a very important point.  He said it is highly suspect when an 
“accessory structure” exceeds the principle structure by three or four times.   
 
Ms. Stine referenced the accessory structure located on Windmill [from the slide 
presentation].  Ms. Stine said it is the size of the garage that is so disconcerting, not 
so much the materials.  She said the neighbors are not happy, and the purpose of 
that particular garage is to house commercial vehicles.  Ms. Stine said one of the 
initial purposes of the Alpine monster garage was to house recreational vehicles.  
She suggested that a definition be created for “recreational vehicle”.   
 
Mr. Smith commented that there has been a lot of discussion on the three uses of 
accessory buildings, storage, recreation and vehicles.  He suggested that the uses 
be incorporated into the ordinance.  
 
Mr. Strat briefly addressed outdoor storage facilities with respect to housing 
commercial and recreational vehicles.   
 
Discussion followed with the approach to take on the matter. 
 
Ms. Beltramini said she believes City Council wants some definable effort on this 
issue on the part of the Planning Commission members prior to the City Council 
Public Hearing in November.  She said they would take “half a loaf” should that be 
all that is available.   
 
Ms. Stine said she is familiar with City Council objectives, attitude and concerns, 
and is appreciative of the City Manager’s suggested tiered approach.  Ms. Stine 
said the “whole loaf” might be more acceptable to City Council.  She said that 
commercial vehicles is a difficult matter to address at the table.   
 
Mr. Szerlag said he also sensed that from City Council, and thinks it would be 
reasonable to address commercial vehicles and material compatibility in 30 to 45 
days after addressing the immediate concern of monster accessory structures.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain said the definition of commercial vehicle is adequate and City 
Council should be given the “whole loaf”.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 26, 2004 
 

Mr. Szerlag said City Management and the Legal Department would work together 
to move the matter forward.   
 
Revisions to the proposed amendments: 

• Height of garage door (consensus 8 feet, arrived from straw vote) 
• Height of garage (14 foot) 
• Limitation of 200 square feet on all supplemental accessory buildings 
• Add height limit to supplemental buildings 
• Address condominiums with respect to ground floor living area 
• Definition list to have specificity 

 
It was determined that separate reports and separate proposed amendments would 
be prepared for accessory structures and commercial vehicles, and material 
compatibility would be addressed in the very near future.  
 
Chair Waller asked Mr. Carlisle if a chart could be created showing parameters of 
accessory buildings.   
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 2, 2004 
 

7. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215) – Articles 04.20.00, 
10.00.00, 30.00.00, 31.00.00, and 40.00.00 Accessory Structures and 
Neighborhood Compatibility 
 
Mr. Miller reported that extensive meetings have been held wherein the Planning 
Department and Building Department reviewed the proposed zoning ordinance text 
amendments as revised by the Planning Commission at its last meeting.  Mr. Miller 
distributed the most current revisions.  He noted that the Planning Consultant, 
Richard Carlisle, has reviewed the revisions and said the changes are appropriate.  
Mr. Miller reported that Mr. Carlisle was not able to attend tonight’s meeting due to 
a conflict in his calendar.  Mr. Miller reported that the proposed language has not 
been reviewed by the City Attorney’s Office for legalities or format.   
 
Mr. Stimac clarified that three separate resolutions are being prepared so that the 
resolutions can be considered independently.  The three resolutions relate to (1) 
accessory building provisions; (2) commercial vehicle definitions; and (3) the 
commercial vehicle appeal process.   
 
Chair Waller asked around the table whether the members would like to consider 
submitting commercial vehicles to City Council as part of their review on accessory 
buildings and neighborhood compatibility. 
 
It was the consensus of the members to consider all three items.   
 
There was a brief discussion on the publication of the Public Hearing notice for the 
proposed zoning ordinance text amendments.  The Attorney’s Office will provide an 
opinion prior to the November 9, 2004 Regular Meeting.   
 
Discussion followed on specific sections of the proposed zoning ordinance text 
amendment.   
 
Section 04.20.32 
It was determined that trailers should be defined.   
 
Section 40.65.02 
Mr. Stimac explained the revision cleans up a long-standing inconsistency in the 
section.  Mr. Stimac noted that the revision has no impact on the proposed 
amendments relating to accessory structures.   
 
The typographical error in the third line will be corrected; i.e., change the word “of” 
to “or”.  



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 2, 2004 
 

Section 40.66.00 
There was discussion on: 

• Gross vehicle weight rating (GVWR) 
• Lettering, graphics, advertising on vehicles 
• Dual use of vehicles (commercial and personal) 
• Limitation on the number of vehicles 
• Household occupancy; i.e., more than one family member in same 

commercial business 
• Indoor and outdoor parking and storage 
• Home occupation ordinance and enforcement 

 
___________ 

 
There was a 5-minute recess for technical reasons. 
 

___________ 
 
Proposed revision.  Outdoor parking of more than one commercial vehicle with the 
gross vehicle weight rating (GVWR) of less than 10,000 pounds or the indoor or 
outdoor parking of any commercial vehicle with the gross vehicle weight rating 
(GVWR) above 10,001 pounds shall be prohibited. 
 
Sections 43.74.00, 43.74.01, 43.74.02 
There was discussion on: 

• Time period of appeals 
• Tracking / updating of VIN numbers 
• Administration approval 
• Fee for appeals and renewals 

 
Proposed revision:  The BZA may grant appeals for an initial period not to exceed 
two years, and may thereafter extend such actions for a period up to 3 years.   
 
04.20.01, 04.20.02 Definitions 
Proposed revision:  Include public parking garages in definitions. 
 
Section 40.56.01 
There was discussion on: 

• Building height limitation 
• Ground floor living area formula; i.e., quad, tri-level, 3-car garage 
• Footprint language 
• Door height limitation 
• Limitations on number of detached accessory buildings 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 2, 2004 
 

___________ 
 
There was a 5-minute recess for technical reasons. 
 

___________ 
 
Section 40.56.02 
There was discussion on: 

• Footprint language relating to combined ground floor area 
 
Section 40.56.03 
There was discussion on: 
Limitations on number of detached accessory supplemental buildings 
Locations of detached accessory supplemental buildings  
Carports, sheds 
 
Proposed revisions:  
(1)  Reword Section 40.56.03 (C) with respect to setbacks 
(2)  Change limitation of detached accessory supplement buildings to 3 
 
Section 40.57.06 
There was discussion on: 

• Variance requirements for barns and greenhouses 
 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 9, 2004 

11. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215A) 
– Article 04.20.00 and Articles 40.55.00-40.59.00, pertaining to Accessory 
Buildings Definitions and Provisions 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the proposed zoning ordinance text 
amendment that relates specifically to accessory building definitions and 
provisions.  He reviewed the revisions that were made after the November 2, 
2004 Planning Commission Special/Study Meeting.  Mr. Miller recommended an 
additional change to Section 40.56.03(C).  He said the intent and clarity of the 
section would be better if it read:  “An accessory supplemental building shall not 
be allowed in a front yard.”  Mr. Miller also noted that the number of accessory 
supplemental buildings was changed from 2 to 3.   
 
Vice Chair Chamberlain said he would like to see all three proposed zoning 
ordinance text amendments considered tonight and recommendations forwarded 
to City Council.   
 
Mr. Vleck disagreed and said he would like more time to consider the proposed 
amendments.  Mr. Vleck said the members had a very short timeframe to 
consider the matter, and that more time and consideration was put into other 
proposed zoning ordinance text amendments that had much less of an affect on 
residents.  Mr. Vleck voiced dissatisfaction with the Public Hearing notice.  He 
said anyone reading the Public Hearing notice would not have a clue that the City 
has taken under consideration restricting the size of accessory buildings and 
changing commercial vehicle provisions.  Mr. Vleck said he would like more time 
to discuss the 8-foot height restriction of garage doors.  He said the height of mini 
conversion vans range from 8 feet 2 inches to 9 feet 10 inches.  He suggested 
restricting the size of an attached or detached accessory building to the square 
footage of the house.  Mr. Vleck said that the proposed amendments are overall 
too restrictive.   
 
Mr. Schultz questioned if the revision to Section 40.56.03 adequately handles a 
corner lot that is considered a double front. 
 
Mr. Miller said they are both considered front yards.   
 
Mr. Schultz said he is comfortable moving forward with the accessory building 
proposed amendments, but not comfortable going forward with the proposed 
amendments relating to commercial vehicles and the appeal process.   
 
Mr. Wright said he agrees with Mr. Chamberlain.  He would like to see all three 
items off the Planning Commission table and onto the City Council table.  Mr. 
Wright said the commercial vehicle section is simple and has been bandied 
around for 15 years.   
 
Mr. Littman said he is comfortable with the 8-foot restriction on the garage door 
height.  Mr. Littman agreed to move forward with the amendments relating to 
accessory buildings, but would like more time to review and get further input from 
the Planning Consultant on commercial vehicles and the appeal process.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 9, 2004 

Ms. Drake-Batts said she would like to see a higher height restriction on the garage 
door.  She would also like to see language added so that materials used on an 
accessory building are consistent with materials of the residence.  Ms. Drake-Batts 
said she would like to see all three text amendments considered and forwarded to 
City Council tonight.   
 
Mr. Strat said he is comfortable with the 8-foot restriction on the garage door height.  
Mr. Strat said the members and staff worked very hard on the proposed zoning 
ordinance text amendments relating to accessory buildings and would like to see 
that go forward to City Council.  He would prefer more time to review the text 
amendments relating to commercial vehicle definitions.   
 
Mr. Khan said he is comfortable with the 8-foot restriction on the garage door height 
and going forward on all three proposed text amendments.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Tom Krent of 3184 Alpine, Troy, was present.  Mr. Krent said the proposed 
amendments relating to the size of accessory structures are too restrictive.  Mr. 
Krent brought to the attention of the Commission that the 2% growth factor 
formula was added to the proposed amendment on detached accessory 
structures but not attached accessory structures.  Mr. Krent distributed a 
photograph that depicts a neighbor’s view of a large “warehouse garage”.  Mr. 
Krent said such a building would be horrible to the character and continuity of the 
neighborhood.  Mr. Krent also addressed materials.  He said ribbed steel panel 
material that is used on industrial storage facilities does not belong in a 
residential neighborhood.  He noted that the Zoning Ordinance as currently 
written allows the material.  Mr. Krent said he has spoken to neighboring 
community officials who agree that ribbed steel panel material should not be 
used in residential areas.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Vleck agrees with the comments of Mr. Krent with respect to the size 
restrictions of accessory structures and doors.  Mr. Vleck would like to see 
materials addressed and language added to the Zoning Ordinance that materials 
must be consistent with the residence.   
 
It was noted by the Planning Department and confirmed that the language to 
incorporate the 2% growth factor formula for attached accessory structures could 
be accomplished prior to the City Council Public Hearing.   
 
Vice Chair Chamberlain asked for comments from around the table.   
 
Mr. Vleck recommended that all accessory structures be equal to the ground floor 
space, and the construction of attached or detached structures is at the 
homeowner’s discretion.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 9, 2004 

Vice Chair Chamberlain said that would not work with some of the large existing 
parcels in the City.  He recommended the separation of detached and attached 
structures.   
 
Mr. Khan said the proposed amendments are good to go before City Council and, if 
necessary, revisions to the text could be made in the future.   
 
Mr. Strat concurred with the comments of Mr. Khan.  He said the ordinance should 
be designed for the norm and not the exception, and that the exceptions can go 
before the BZA.   
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said the proposed text is good to go.   
 
Mr. Littman said he is fine with the proposed text.  He questioned the rationale for 
attached buildings being 600 square feet and detached buildings being 450 square 
feet plus the 2% growth factor.   
 
Vice Chair Chamberlain said it works out to be the same number. 
 
Mr. Miller explained the general direction is to provide more of a limit on the 
attached structures in an effort to model traditional home development. 
 
Mr. Wright said he is okay with the proposed text as printed.  He would like to see 
compatible materials addressed in the near future.   
 
Mr. Schultz said he is fine with the proposed text as printed.  He would not like to 
see the 2% growth factor on attached accessory structures.  Mr. Schultz said that 
under no circumstances should an attached accessory structure be greater than 
the size of the home.  Mr. Schultz said he would like to see an additional paragraph 
under 40.56.01 Attached Accessory Buildings that would state exterior finishes of 
attached accessory buildings shall be similar or compatible with the exterior of the 
principal structure.  Mr. Schultz said he would not support similar language for 
detached accessory structures.  
 
Mr. Vleck questioned if the latest text revisions have been reviewed by the City’s 
Planning Consultant and the City Attorney’s office.   
 
Mr. Miller confirmed that the City’s Planning Consultant, Richard Carlisle, reviewed 
the revisions as of Monday, November 8.  Mr. Carlisle is in concurrence with the 
revisions and stated it is the discretion of individual communities to determine the 
size of accessory structures as a part of the community character.   
 
Resolution # PC-2004-11-133 
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Article 04.20.00 and Articles 40.55.00-40.59.00, pertaining to 
Accessory Buildings Definitions and Provisions, be amended as printed on the 
Proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment, dated 11/09/04, subject to the 
following condition.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 9, 2004 

1. Revise Section 40.56.03 C to read:  “An accessory supplemental building 
shall not be allowed in a front yard.”   

 
Discussion on the motion. 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-11-134 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, To amend the motion on the floor that if there are changes to the 
proposed text by either City Council or City staff, that said recommendations or 
requests be returned to the Planning Commission for its consideration for 
inclusion and resubmission of the ZOTA to City Council. 
 
Vote on the amendment to the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Schultz, Strat, Vleck, Wright 
No: Chamberlain, Drake-Batts, Khan, Littman 
Absent: Waller 
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-11-135 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To amend the motion on the floor to add under Section 40.56.01 
Attached Accessory Buildings, paragraph D, to read:  “The exterior materials on 
any attached accessory buildings shall be compatible with the exterior materials 
of the main dwelling structure.”   
 
Discussion on the amendment to the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Khan said it is normal to have the same material for an attached garage. 
 
Mr. Wright and other members referenced the photograph submitted by Mr. Krent 
and confirmed that the 3129 Alpine structure is attached and is constructed of 
different material than the house.   
 
Mr. Littman asked the definition of “compatible” and who would be the 
determining party.   
 
A brief discussion followed on the definition of “compatible”. 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts suggested using the word “consistent” instead of “compatible”.   
 
Mr. Strat questioned the enforceability of the Zoning Ordinance with respect to 
“compatible” or “consistent” materials.  He said it is an interpretation, and he 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 9, 2004 

would assume the determining party would be the Building Department’s plan 
reviewer. 
 
Mr. Motzny said whenever the words “compatible, consistent, typical” or similar 
terms are used, a problem is created.  The ordinance is vague because it leaves 
too much discretion to the person who has to make a decision.  Mr. Motzny said 
the cure to the problem is to provide standards as to what “compatible” or similar 
terms mean.  Mr. Motzny said whether the ordinance is enforceable or not is 
whether or not some judge says there are sufficient standards to define what 
“compatible” or similar terms mean.   
 
Vice Chair Chamberlain reminded the members that a Public Hearing in front of 
City Council has been scheduled at the end of the month.   
 
Vote on the [amendment to the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Schultz, Strat, Wright 
No: Chamberlain, Khan, Littman, Vleck 
Absent: Waller 
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
 
Vote on the original motion. 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-11-133 
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Article 04.20.00 and Articles 40.55.00-40.59.00, pertaining to 
Accessory Buildings Definitions and Provisions, be amended as printed on the 
Proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment, dated 11/09/04, subject to the 
following condition.  
 

1. Revise Section 40.56.03 C to read:  “An accessory supplemental building 
shall not be allowed in a front yard.”   

 
Yes: Chamberlain, Drake-Batts, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Wright 
No: Vleck 
Absent: Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Vleck made the following comments on his no vote.   
(1) Section 40.57.02 B – The area of the attached accessory building should be 

equal to the square footage of the house and not half the ground floor print; 
and the 600 square feet should be 800 square feet. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 9, 2004 

(2) Section 40.57.02 C – Should be stricken, or the 8 feet should be increased to 
either 10 or 12 feet because it does not include standard conversion vans 
that are used by the physically disabled. 

(3) Section 40.57.04 D – The 450 square feet should be 600 square feet plus 2% 
of the total lot area. 

(4) Section 40.57.06 G – Should be stricken and any other references to garage 
door height should deleted or increased to 10 or 12 feet.   

 
 
 



RESOLUTION AFFIRMING THE PRINCIPLES OF FEDERALISM AND 
CIVIL LIBERTIES 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Troy believes there is no inherent conflict between national security and the 
preservation of liberty, and affirms its strong support of the rights of Americans to be both safe and free; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Troy recognizes the Constitution of the United States as our nation’s charter of 
liberty, and that the Bill of Rights enshrines the fundamental and inalienable rights of America, including 
the freedoms of speech, religion, assembly, privacy; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Troy has a distinguished record of upholding the Constitution, and the Bill of 
Rights, and safeguarding the freedoms and rights of American residents; and 
 
WHEREAS, on September 11, 2001, terrorists from abroad attacked the U.S. by commandeering four 
commercial airliners, and destroyed the World Trade Center in New York, significantly damaged the 
Pentagon, and caused a jetliner crash resulting in significant civilian casualties; and 
 
WHEREAS, the terrorist attack was an attack on a nation that is home to a diverse population and plunged 
the nation into deep concern regarding its national security and vulnerability to future attacks; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Troy condemns all terrorist acts wherever occurring; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Troy believes that efforts to prevent and respond to acts of terrorism require 
extensive coordination, cooperation, and accountability among the federal, state, and local level; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Troy recognizes that protecting our citizens against future terrorist attacks 
requires the federal government to aggressively pursue potential terrorists but these efforts to combat 
terrorism should not disproportionately infringe on the civil rights and liberties of the people of the U.S.; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the prevention of future terrorists attacks is a critical national priority, but it is equally 
important to preserve the civil liberties and personal freedoms embodied in the Bill of Rights over 200 
years ago, and which have been preserved through a constant vigilance against periodic threats to its 
principles; and 
 
WHEREAS, in response to the terrorist attacks, on October 26, 2001, the U.S. Congress passed, and 
President Bush signed into law, the USA PATRIOT Act, an acronym for "Uniting and Strengthening 
America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism," by a Senate vote 
of 98-1 and House of Representative vote of 357-66; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Troy believes that a number of provisions of the USA PATRIOT Act threaten 
fundamental rights and civil liberties, including: 

• Section 213 which permits law enforcement to perform searches with no one present and to delay 
notification of the search of a citizen’s home;  

• Section 215 which permits the FBI Director to seek records from bookstores and libraries 
including books of patrons based on minimal evidence of wrongdoing and prohibits librarians and 
bookstore employees from disclosing the fact that they have been ordered to produce such 
documents; 

• Section 218 which amends the “probable cause” requirement before conducting secret searches or 
surveillance to obtain evidence of a crime; 

• Sections 215, 218, 358, and 508 which permit law enforcement authorities to have broad access to 
sensitive mental health, library, business, financial, and educational records despite the existence 
of previously adopted state and federal laws which were intended to strengthen the protection of 
these types of records; 

bittnera
Text Box
H-01



• Sections 411 and 412 which give the Secretary of State broad powers to designate domestic 
groups as “terrorist organizations” and the Attorney General power to subject immigrants to 
indefinite detention or deportation even if no crime has been committed; and  

• Sections 507 and 508 which impose an unfunded mandate on state and local public universities 
who must collect information on students that may be of interest to the Attorney General. 

 
WHEREAS, municipal government budgets across the nation are strained and these added duties 
constitute unfunded mandates on cities police departments, libraries, universities, etc. that cities cannot 
financially absorb; and 
 
WHEREAS, new legislation has been drafted entitled the Domestic Security Enhancement Act (DSEA) 
(also known as PATRIOT II) which contains numerous new sweeping law enforcement and intelligence 
gathering powers, many of which are not related to terrorism, and which would severely dilute, if not 
undermine, many basic constitutional rights; and 
 
WHEREAS, in response to the threats against civil liberties embodied in certain provisions of the 
PATRIOT ACT, legislation has been introduced in the House and Senate that would roll back certain 
provisions of the PATRIOT ACT. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Troy supports the U.S. campaign against 
terrorism, but the City of Troy affirms its commitment to the U.S. Constitution and respective state 
constitutions; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City of Troy urges President George W. Bush, and executive 
branch members to review, revise and rescind executive orders and policies adopted since the terrorist 
attacks, that limit or compromise the liberties guaranteed by the Constitution and the Bill of Rights; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City of Troy urges the U.S. Congress to amend the PATRIOT 
ACT in order to restore and protect our nation’s fundamental and inalienable rights and liberties; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City of Troy supports the "Freedom to Read Protection Act of 
2003” that would reinstate legal standards for libraries and bookstores and the Protecting the Rights of 
Individuals Act which would require a court order before conducting electronic surveillance; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City of Troy supports the sunset of key provisions of the 
PATRIOT Act and increased Congressional oversight over the role of the agencies responsible for 
enforcing the law; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City of Troy calls on Congress, the Department of Homeland 
Security, and other related agencies to partner with cities to protect our hometowns while simultaneously 
preserving the liberties of Americans; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution be forwarded to the U.S. President George 
W. Bush, the U.S. Attorney General nominee Dr. Condoleezza Rice, Senator Debbie Stabenow, Senator 
Carl Levin, and Representative Joseph Knoellenberg. 



bartholotl
Text Box
J-02a































November 10, 2004   
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item: State-Facilitated Emerald Ash Borer Tree Removal 

Contract, and Status Report on Troy’s Ash Borer Control Program 
 
 
At their November 8, 2004 meeting, City Council requested information on the 
State-Facilitated Emerald Ash Borer Tree Removal Contract, as well as a status 
report on the City’s Emerald Ash Borer Control Program with respect to the 
effectiveness of chemical treatments.  
 

State Ash Tree Removal Contract 
 
The devastation from the Emerald Ash Borer (EAB) on the region’s ash trees and 
its impact on both municipalities and residents alike has prompted the State of 
Michigan, through the Department of Agriculture (MDA) and Management and 
Budget (DMB) to develop a program utilizing the State’s contracting system to 
obtain standardized pricing for ash tree removal. 
 
The goal of the program is to provide municipalities and homeowners with a 
more affordable rate for tree removal, while increasing business opportunities for 
area tree care and removal companies. Only those communities and 
homeowners in the thirteen EAB quarantined counties – Genesee, Ingham, 
Jackson, Lapeer, Lenawee, Livingston, Macomb, Monroe, Oakland, St. Claire, 
Shiawassee, Washtenaw, and Wayne are eligible to participate. Participation by 
municipalities in the affected counties is entirely voluntary, although the 
municipality must participate in order for its residents to participate. 
 
How the Program Works 
It is important to note that this program does not offer financial assistance to 
municipalities or homeowners for ash tree removal. It is also important to 
understand that the program relies on the local unit of government to administer 
the program and act as an agent for the State. The responsibility for taking 
resident requests for tree removal, verifying quantities and tree sizes, contacting 
participating contractors, scheduling and coordinating removals with contractor 
and resident, accepting payment from resident, and paying contractors after 
inspection of completed tree removal will fall to one, or more individuals acting as 
local coordinator(s). In the case of the City of Troy, Parks and Recreation staff 
would likely perform this function. It would also be the City’s responsibility to 
mediate disputes between homeowner and contractor resulting from property 
damage. 
 

 1

bartholotl
Text Box
J-2b



The program requires prospective vendors to obtain an “Invitation to Bid” from 
the DMB and return it to the State by the deadline date of December 1, 2004. 
Proposals will include information about the vendor as well as bid prices for 
removal of ash trees in various size ranges. A State review panel will then 
evaluate the proposals and develop both a list of vendors meeting the program 
criteria and standardized pricing for ash tree removals of municipal and 
residential trees. The State expects to award the contract(s) on December 15, 
2004, with a start date of the three-year contract of January 1, 2005. 
 
Areas of Concern 
While City staff agrees with goal of the program to provide lower costs to the 
homeowner for removal of diseased and dead ash trees on their private property, 
several area of concern should be discussed before the City agrees to 
participate. 
 
The main concern is the inordinate amount of staff time that will be necessary to 
coordinate and administer the program. Someone, or several individuals will 
need to devote a great deal of their time to this program for the next several 
years until all private ash trees are removed. The staff that would be responsible 
for this program already administers a contract for removal of an estimated 
30,000 public ash trees, as well as upcoming contracts for replanting those trees 
being removed. Participation in this program will necessitate a shift of workload 
among remaining staff, or reduction in services currently being offered. 
 
There are also financial issues to discuss, which will have direct impact on other 
City departments. Under the program, residents would be required to prepay for 
the tree work to be done. One method for this would require the City to set up an 
account for receipt of perhaps thousands of residents’ prepayment for tree 
removal services. Following removal, the City would then have to process and 
release payment to the contractor performing the work. Another possible method 
would be to add the cost of removal to the individual’s property taxes. This 
method, however, would require a separate City funding source to pay the 
contractor for services rendered, rather than make them wait for taxes to be 
received by the City before receiving payment.  
 
 

Status of Troy’s Emerald Ash Borer Control Program 
 
Troy continues its policy of ash tree removals in response to the introduced 
insect know as the Emerald Ash Borer.  The decision to begin and continue this 
removal policy is based on the following: 
 

• As per MSU, trees showing 15% or greater borer damage are not suitable 
candidates for treatment attempts.  

• Dr. Deborah McCullough indicates that current treatment success rates 
range from 33 to 60%. 

 2



• Due to the estimated number of ash trees in Troy and the narrow window 
for applications of control chemicals, the City would have to contract out 
control services. 

• Note that the recommended chemicals are highly toxic.  Staff is concerned 
about the long-term effects of broad applications of these chemicals to the 
environment.  While professional applications can provide a higher degree 
of containment, staff is very concerned about misuse of these chemicals 
by the general public, as well as the possibility of long-term soil and water 
contamination.  

• Estimated average treatment cost per tree is $150.00 annually.  As the 
average ash tree in Troy would have lived for another 40 years, each tree 
would cost the City approximately $6000.00 to treat during its life.   

• The estimated 30,000 ash trees on municipal property would have 
cost an estimated $180 million dollars to treat over the next 40 years.  

• City Staff currently estimates it will take $6 million and four years to 
remove 30,000 municipal ash trees.  

• Prior to the Emerald Ash Borer infestation, the City installed 650 trees 
annually at an estimated cost of $89,300.00.  In response to the tree loss 
the City currently has a three-year replacement contract for 1300 trees 
annually with an estimated total contract cost of $537,350.00. 

• If the City were to replace 30,000 trees at the current cost of $125.00 
per tree, the City would incur a total estimate cost of $3.75 million.   

• It is therefore estimated that total removal and replacement of 30,000 
trees would cost approximately $9.75 million.  An estimated saving of 
approximately $170.25 million over the cost of treatment, assuming an 
effective treatment was available and all municipal trees were treated.   

• Note that the municipalities that have chosen to treat their ash are dealing 
with much smaller quantities – fewer than 1000 ash trees.  The City of 
Grosse Pointe Farms, featured in a news article touting the benefit of 
treating ash rather than adopting the State recommendation of 
eradication, has been treating 500 public ash trees. 

• A survey was conducted of several surrounding communities – 
Farmington Hills, Southfield, Ann Arbor, Birmingham, and Sterling Heights 
to find out how each city is approaching the Emerald Ash Borer problem 
with their municipal trees. 
 
Farmington Hills - Treated some of their estimated 377 municipal ash two 
years ago with no success. No longer treating. Are now removing all ash 
when they reach 50% dieback. Performing the removals with contractors, 
as well as city staff. 

  
Southfield - Not treating any ash. Are removing all municipal ash (est. 
2200 trees), using both contractors and city staff. Estimate the cost of 
contracted removals at @$500/tree. 

  
  

 3



Ann Arbor - Not treating their municipal ash. Plan to remove all of their 
18,000-20,000 ash with contractors and city staff. Have removed @1800 
trees since 2002.  
  
Birmingham - Not treating their municipal ash. Are removing all of their 
850 ash by contract (J. H. Hart). 
  
Sterling Heights - Not treating their municipal ash, but have allowed 
residents to treat at their own expense. Are removing all of their estimated 
14,000 ash, with contractor removing trees 6" in diameter and larger, and 
having city crews remove ash with diameters smaller than 6". 

 
 
Summary 
The State is continuing to hold meetings throughout the region to answer 
questions for members of local units of government regarding the State-
Facilitated Emerald Ash Borer Tree Removal Contract program. Formal training 
sessions will be available after the contracts are in place. Staff will continue to 
provide updates as critical information becomes available. We will have a better 
idea of the level of contractor participation and proposed bid prices for tree 
removal after bids have been received by the State and will then be able to 
evaluate whether this is a beneficial program for the residents of Troy. Staff will 
also continue to investigate other possibilities that may provide residents with 
removal options without committing as many City resources to the effort. 
 
Regarding the City’s Emerald Ash Borer Control Program, the decision to remove 
Troy’s municipal ash trees was based on the best information available from the 
State Department of Agriculture, and others represented on the State Emerald 
Ash Borer Task Force.  Contrary to a minority or individuals in the tree care 
industry, removal of the ash in the thirteen county quarantine area remains the 
recommended method to eradicate the Emerald Ash Borer and keep it from 
spreading to other parts of Michigan, surrounding states and potentially the 
eastern one-third of the United States. 
 
Treatment of the City’s 30,000+ municipal ash trees was not an option, due to 
cost, logistics of treating all trees within a small treatment window timeframe, and 
the advanced state of borer infestation in this area at the time this pest was first 
discovered. 
 
CKA/jb 
 

 4



bittnera
Text Box
J-04a



bartholotl
Text Box
J-05






	AGENDA:  November 29, 2004
	Agenda Explanation Booklet - First Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:  International Day of Persons with Disabi

	CARRYOVER ITEMS: No Carryover Items
	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 Proposed Consent Judgment City of Troy v. Premium Develo
	C-2 Commercial Vehicle Appeal -1855 Boulan
	C-3 Commercial Vehicle Appeal - 2887 E. Wattles Road
	C-4 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 3035 Heritage
	C-5 Parking Variance Request – 1717 Stutz Drive
	C-6 Request for Rezoning (Z-697) West Side of Crooks Road, N

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 200) for Article 3

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	Public comment is limited to not more than twice nor longer 
	E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Co
	E-2  Minutes:  Regular Meeting of November 15, 2004
	E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:
	a\) International Day of Persons with Disabilities - December 3, 2004


	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: No appointments t

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	a\) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment \(Z

	G-2 Green Memorandums: No Green Items Submitted

	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Ind
	H-1  Resolution Affirming the Principles of Federalism and C

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:  No Council Comments Brought Forward
	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: No Minutes Submitted
	J-2 Department Reports:
	October 31, 2004 Monthly Financial Report
	State-Facilitated Emerald Ash Borer Tree Removal Contract, a

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation: No Letters of Appreciation Sub
	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizat
	a) Resolution Adopted by Royal Oak City Commission, November 8, 2004 Regarding:  House Bill 4358

	J-5  Calendar

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1  Alternative Sites for Minor League Baseball Facility – 

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:  No Closed Session Requested
	RECESSED
	RECONVENED
	ADJOURNMENT



